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STATE OF WOM NG

HEARI NG TO DI SCUSS PROPOSED REVI SI ONS TO WATER QUALI TY
RULES AND REGULATI ONS CHAPTER 24 AND UPDATE ON CHAPTERS
8, 9, 13, 16 AND 27 FOR REVI EW BY THE WATER AND WASTE

ADVI SORY BOARD AND UPDATE ON ELECTRONI C PUBLI C COMMENTS

TRANSCRI PT OF HEARI NG PROCEEDI NGS

Transcri pt of Hearing Proceedings in the above-
entitled matter before the Water and Waste Advi sory
Board, comrencing on the 7th day of My, 2015, at
9:00 a.m at the G| and Gas Conservati on Conm ssion
Bui | ding Heari ng Room 2211 King Boul evard, Casper,

Wom ng, Ms. Marjorie Bedessem presiding, with Board
Menbers M. Calvin Jones and M. Kl aus Hanson in
attendance and Board Menmber Ms. Lorie Cahn appearing via
vi deo-conferencing. Also present were M. Kevin
Frederick, M. Bill Tillman and Ms. G na Thonmpson from

DEQ and Ms. Laura Ladd from Hewitt Ladd Consulti ng.
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PROCEEDI NGS
(Hearing proceedi ngs conmenced
9:00 a.m, May 7, 2015.)

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  Good nor ni ng,

everyone. We're going to now convene the Water and Waste

Advi sory Board nmeeting. Start off with introducing the
board nmenbers who are present today.

MR. HANSON: Kl aus Hanson, Laram e.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Representing | oca
gover nment s?

MR. HANSON: Representing the nunici pal
gover nments.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  Mar ge Bedessem
representing the public.

MR. JONES: And |I'm Cal Jones. |I'm
representing agricul ture.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  And Dave Appl egate,
our industrial representative, is not here. And then
renotely --

MS. CAHN: Lorie Cahn, representing the
public at |arge.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  And first up this
nmor ni ng we have the Water Quality Division. Like to go
ahead and have Adm nistrator Kevin Frederick start off

and introduce his staff and begin your presentation.

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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MR. FREDERI CK: Thank you, Madam Chai r man.
Kevin Frederick, Water Quality Division adm nistrator
Today we have with us M. Bill Tillmn of our staff, G na
Thonpson of our staff, and Ms. Laura Ladd with Hewi tt
Ladd Consulting. We're here today to present to you sone
proposed revisions to our Chapter 24 on Class VI UC, or
underground injection control wells. These are
essentially wells for carbon sequestration projects.

The purpose of the proposed revisions that
we're bringing forward today deal with essentially the
remai ni ng elenents of the regulation that deal with
financial assurance requirenents for carbon sequestration
projects. Financial assurance is sinmilar to reclamtion
and mitigation bonds, for instance, that the Departnment
requires for coal mnes and things like that. 1In the
event that there is a corporate default or the conpany
that is actually doing the carbon sequestration is no
| onger in business and reclamation, nitigation work needs
to be conmpl eted, financial assurance requirenents are
essentially intended to provide the resources that we
could then use to conplete those remining requirenents.

A little background. Interestingly enough,
when the Woning state | egislature began | ooking at
carbon sequestration back in | believe 2008, if |I'm not

m staken, we were actually a |eader in the legislative

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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initiatives nationw de dealing with identification of
pore space rights, for instance, pore space that would be
used for carbon sequestration projects or storage of CO2
underground. And the legislature was pretty active there
for a couple of years trying to set up the schene that
woul d provide for the regul atory oversight of carbon
sequestration projects. That was occurring essentially
si nmul taneously with the USEPA' s devel opnent of a draft
regul ation, a proposed regulation for oversight of carbon
sequestrati on projects.

Madam Chair, as you may recall, Water Quality
Di vision then essentially used EPA' s draft regul ation as
a nodel or a guide in developing our Chapter 24. The
| egislature took the initiative to essentially require in
statute the formation of a work group to begin to | ook at
financial assurance requirenents for carbon sequestration
projects in particular. They established the work group
under the auspices of the director of DEQ John Corra at
the time, the Wonm ng G| and Gas Conservati on
supervi sor, Don Likwartz at the time, and the state
geol ogi st, who | believe was Ron Surdam at the tinme.

The work group then -- by the way, Ms. Ladd was
at that tinme a policy analyst in Governor Dave
Freudenthal's office and partici pated on the working

group on behalf of the governor's office, as well. Ot her

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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menmbers of the working group included representatives
fromthe coal mning industry, fromthe electric
generating power industry. And I think Laura will
probably touch on that a little bit mre when she
provides us a little presentation for you all to kind of
under stand sone background on the devel opment of the

rul es and regul ations.

So, while we were devel oping our draft rule,
Chapter 24, based upon the federal rule at the time, when
the federal rule was finalized, there were actually some
additi onal provisions in there associated with financial
assurance requi renments under EPA's rule that we then have
to fold into our regulation. And the reason that's
necessary is because, like with other underground
injection control wells that are regul ated under federa
rules, the State of Woning is interested in obtaining a
del egation or primacy to be able to adm nister the
perm tting and oversight and so forth of these carbon
sequestrati on wells.

And in order to obtain primcy or be del egated
that permtting authority, our regulations essentially
have to very closely mrror the federal regulations. W
have to be at |east as stringent as the federal
regulations in order to obtain primacy. Obtaining

primacy is inportant because then that gives the State of

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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Wom ng the ability to work with permttees and so forth
in inmplenmenting the regulations. And there's always
been, | think, and rightfully so, a belief that we do a
pretty good job of that at DEQ because we work pretty
closely with the regulated community. W understand sone
of the unique Wom ng conditions that federal regulators
out of Region 8 in Denver perhaps don't understand quite
as well as we do. So that's one of the primary interests
i n obtaining prinmacy.

Movi ng back, then, to what we call the carbon
sequestrati on working group that the |egislature
established, there was a series of neetings that the
wor ki ng group held over, gosh, probably perhaps as many
as two years. We nmet | would say roughly quarterly as a
group. And the outcone of that effort was essentially a
report of the working group's efforts, what they | ooked
at, what they considered, and what they recomended the
| egi sl ature continue as setting a path forward for
financial assurance requirenents for carbon sequestration
projects. So that essentially went then to the
| egi sl ature through the director of DEQ.

Consequently, as a result of that, the
foll owing session -- and | can't tell you which year that
was. It was | believe two thousand --

MS. LADD: Ten.

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
1. 800. 444. 2826



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Hearing to Di scuss Proposed Revisions

*Non DEQ Parties contact 307-635-4424 to purchase copy*

MR. FREDERI CKS: 2010. Thank you, Laura.

In 2010 the legislature actually incorporated
several of the recomendati ons of the working group in
the statute. As a footnote, these reconmendati ons were
i ncorporated in the statute prior to EPA's finalization
of the financial assurance requirements in their final
rule. So we were essentially then faced with trying to
acconplish two objectives in Chapter 24, not only to
recogni ze and incorporate the requirenents under the
final federal rule, but also to recognize and incorporate
the statutory requirenments that resulted fromthe working
group's recomendati ons.

And that is essentially a culmnation of what
we're bringing forth to you today. The proposed
revi sions acconplish both of those objectives. W're
i ncorporating the federal requirements under the federa
rule so we can nmeet the prinmacy del egati on expectations
when we take this package to EPA. And we hope to do that
perhaps this time next year.

And we also then pulled in the statutory
requi rements and Woni ng statutes that were devel oped, as
| said, as a result of the working group's efforts. Sone
of the requirements were very simlar between the federa
rule and the Wonming statutes. And | think for the npst

part, there was a fair anmount of duplication in ternms of

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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the expectations. Not only the Wyom ng | egi sl ature, but
the federal requirements. Federal requirenments got into
alittle bit nore descriptive detail than the Womn ng
statutory requirenents did. That's not surprising.
Nevert hel ess, that was essentially the result of the work
t oday.

During the interim over the |ast couple of
years, both Ms. Ladd and nyself have participated in two
ext ernal working groups. One was essentially established
I would say alnpst at a national [evel and was
essentially conprised of energy industry representatives,
power - generating representatives. There were | believe a
couple of attorneys from Washi ngton, D.C. that were very
closely involved in devel opment of the carbon
sequestration regul ati ons and so forth and whose clients
definitely included energy and power industries.

The intent of that work group was really to
take a | ook at how a financial assurance requirenent
structure could be devel oped and what it would | ook Iike.
And Ms. Ladd is going to present you all with kind of an
overvi ew of that working group's effort. Ms. Ladd and
myself were the only two state representatives, |
bel i eve, on that working group. And we participated on
behal f of both DEQ and the governor's office in attending

several meetings. The outcone of that effort was a

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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report. And Ms. Ladd will touch on that a little bit.
But the report really hel ped serve as a substance, a
framework, if you will, for us to start to begin to
anal yze and eval uate how do we set financial assurance
expectations in | ooking at things like probabilities of
events happening and risks associated with carbon
sequestration and so forth? W'Ill touch on those a
little bit.

On the risk analysis side of it, the Wom ng
wor ki ng group, carbon sequestration working group,
actually did a very simlar analysis. Their report was
conpleted prior to this national work group effort. And
the report's basis and risk assessment, risk
identification and so forth that cane out of Wom ng's
wor ki ng group is actually recognized and considered in
the national work group effort. So there's some
simlarities there. W were | think generally quite
pl eased with the outcome of that effort.

Subsequent to that working group effort, the
| OGCC, which is the national association of state oil and
gas conservation conm ssions, essentially is what it is,
al so had an interest in exploring financial assurance
requi rements for carbon sequestration projects and
established a work group and was primarily led by a

representative of 10GCC who | ed the group. North Dakota

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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was represented because North Dakota is very interested
in carbon sequestration projects primarily associ ated
with enhanced oil recovery.

And | think nost of us believe that in the
short-termfuture, at least, the magjority of the carbon,
CO2 that's going to be injected is probably going to be
used for enhanced oil recovery purposes, simlar to what
we see at Salt Creek. So Laura and | were invited to
participate in that work group

Was Ki p Coddi ngton part of that work group?

MS. LADD: He was.

MR. FREDERI CK: M. Coddi ngton was j ust
recently named the director of -- just recently joined
the University of Won ng's School of Energy Resources in
sone executive capacity. | can't tell you for sure. But
t hat was announced just |ast week. M. Coddington was on
this work with us on the |1 OGCC side of things.

So, at the end of the day, that didn't seemto
be quite as an analytical ook at financial assurance
requirements in that work group as nmuch as had been
undertaken in the national |evel working group, or
per haps even for that matter, in the Wom ng carbon
sequestration working group. But we did gain sonme
insight in working on the 10GCC work group, as well. The

out come of that was essentially guidance of

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
1. 800. 444. 2826



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Hearing to Di scuss Proposed Revisions

*Non DEQ Parties contact 307-635-4424 to purchase copy*

11
consi derations for states that are interested in
devel opi ng carbon sequestration financial assurance
requi rements, nmuch nore broad and general, | think, than

the outcomes of either the national work group or the
Wom ng carbon sequestration working group

By the way, | mentioned North Dakota. North
Dakota is the first state that has submitted its
application to EPA to obtain primacy or del egation for
Class VI UC wells. They submitted their application
several nmonths ago. | understand it's still sitting on
the administrator's desk, waiting for her final
signature. And | think it's fairly safe to say that
North Dakota is a little bit frustrated that it's taking
so long. | suspect that Wonm ng will probably be the
second state to submit its application. O her states
that are interested in considering this are Texas,

Okl ahoma and Kansas. To ny know edge, there may be nore.
There may be others. |'m not sure.

But neverthel ess, that's kind of the background
on what DEQ has done in concert with others in trying to
craft financial assurance requirenents that have, we
thi nk, sone reasonable basis. And in sonme cases, we
sinply don't have much choice but to pull in the federa
requirements in order to neet the stringency

expectations. So we're kind of stuck with sonme of that.

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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But that's how we got here today.

And just for your information, EPA has worked
with us to essentially develop what's called a crosswal k,
federal regulation, state regulation crosswal k. And what
it does, it goes through the federal rule line by line
and the state rule line by line, and EPA essentially has
done a prelimnary analysis and said, okay, Womng, in
| ooking at the stringency requirenents, it |ooks |like A
B and C here line up real well with A, B and Cin the
federal rule. But E, F and G need a little tweaking.
You need to fix sone things, because we just don't think
you're as equivalent as our regulation is.

So that crosswal k has been essentially
conpleted for us. W're | ooking at that now. And
t hi nk our expectation is once we resolve financi al
assurance regul atory requirenments through the advisory
board, we'll be com ng back and meking these final, fina
adj ustnents as recomended by EPA for the crosswal k
stringency evaluation. | hope these are going to be
fairly minor. | don't expect to see a | ot of mgjor
changes. But we want to kind of keep that as a separate
effort before the board so we don't get things any nore
confusing or conmplicated than they already are.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  So ny question is, are

you going to then have two separate packages to the EQC

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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or one package to the EQC?

MR. FREDERI CK: To the EQC?

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  Uh- huh. When it noves
forward.

MS. CAHN: Excuse ne. Kevi n, can you
repeat Marge's question? | couldn't hear Marge.

MR. FREDERI CK: The question was whet her
or not we anticipate taking two packages before the
Environmental Quality Council, simlar to what we're
proposing here to the advisory board, or just one. Did
you catch that, Lorie?

MS. CAHN: Yes, | did. Thank you, Kevin.

MR. FREDERI CK: | think, to an extent,
it's dependent upon how quickly we can nove financi al
assurance requirenments through the advisory board. W
have not reconmmended to the advisory board at this tinme
of making a final decision today on noving the regul ation
before the EQC, although that's certainly the board's
pl easure. We think we'll be prepared to -- we hope we'l
be prepared to bring the crosswal k changes before the
board at its next neeting.

And ideally, it would be ny hope that at the
next neeting, the board would essentially approve noving
both financial assurance requirenents, as well as the

crosswal k nodifications that we' Il present at the next

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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meeting, to the EQC. So I think that's nmy plan. Then we
woul d take one package to the EQC

CHAl RMVAN BEDESSEM  Makes sense to ne.

MR. FREDERI CK: Good. Thank you.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Less confusing

MR. FREDERI CK: So, Madam Chai r man, |
would like to provide an opportunity for Ms. Ladd to
provide you with a little bit nore background and det ai
on what |'ve tried to lay out here, and follow ng that,

an opportunity for questions and answers. M. Tillman

here will take us a little bit nmore closely through the
proposed revisions to the regulation, and we'll go from
t here.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Sounds good

MR. FREDERI CK: Thank you

MS. LADD: Good norning, Madam Chair,
menbers of the advisory board. Thank you for the
opportunity to present to you today. |It's a privilege to
be here. And thank you, Director Frederick, for inviting
me. Can you hear ne okay?

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Uh- huh

MS. LADD: So I'd like to wal k you through
a series of slides that just provide a little bit of
addi ti onal background and sonme of the detail particularly

around the nodeling |anguage that's in the rule. And

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
1. 800. 444. 2826



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Hearing to Di scuss Proposed Revisions

*Non DEQ Parties contact 307-635-4424 to purchase copy*
15

Director Frederick certainly did a nice job of already
addressi ng sonme of those issues, so | will probably be
brief so as to try not to be redundant. But certainly
feel free to interrupt ne at any point in time if you
have questi ons.
So, as Director Frederick nmentioned, there

really have been three conponents of --

MS. CAHN: Does the slide change? Because
it's not changing on mne

MS. LADD: Ckay. Hi, Lorie. It did
change on our screen. So our technology whiz, Gna, is
trying to set it up.

MS. CAHN: Okay. Now it's online.

MS. LADD: 1'll just go manually. No
probl em

So there are three conponents to the background

and efforts of the State that informthis rule. W've
talked a little bit about sonme of the State of Woning' s
| egislative efforts and the formation of this carbon
sequestrati on working group. I'll go into that in a
little bit nore detail. M ght be worth just pointing out
that the findings of that working group and the statute
that followed is what created the nandate for DEQ to
create this rule and create the revisions to this rule

that are proposed today.

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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And then as noted, we participated in these two
additional studies. And | would maybe just add a couple
of points around what we were hoping to seek,
particularly in participation in the national study
director Frederick nmentioned, which was |ed by a group
call ed Industrial Econom cs out of Boston. And
I ndustrial Economics is really an expert in damges
esti mates and econom c nodeling, not infrequently
testifying at congressional hearings on these types of
i ssues.

And so, at the time that we had conpleted the
wor ki ng group, we still really had sone difficulty
t hi nki ng about how you were going to have a robust cost-
estimation effort. You know, we could identify what
types of financial assurance nade sense for which pieces
of a project, but the actual valuation work was sonething
we wanted to better understand. So that was a variable
in our decision to participate in that effort.

And then the 1 OGCC report, an effort that
Di rector Frederick nentioned, certainly cane |ater, which
in sone ways is also interesting, because there was -- it
was shortly after EPA had released the Class VI rule. So
there was | would say a little bit nore of a political
conponent to that effort, where folks were digesting that

rule and trying to think about what that meant for them

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
1. 800. 444. 2826



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Hearing to Di scuss Proposed Revisions

*Non DEQ Parties contact 307-635-4424 to purchase copy*
17

and what they wanted to recommend as a result.

Nonet hel ess, we wanted to do our best efforts
particularly around trying to put a financial assurance
regime in place that addressed the |latter stages of a
project, particularly after the operations had ceased,
and trying to understand what the costs and esti mtes
needed to look like in the post closure and long-term
liability phases of the project.

So, moving on to the next slide. And | won't

read this. | want to just point out a few things. The
effort started in 2007, | believe, really. And at that
time | was working for Governor Freudenthal. | would

paraphrase his interests as wanting to make sure that if
and when the marketplace deci ded that geol ogic carbon
sequestration or permanent sequestration becanme a viable
solution that Wom ng was ready to serve, essentially,
and that we had the foundation and framework in place to
be able to do that in an effective way. And so this
i ssue around liability and assunption of liability and
estimation of liability was something -- was one of those
bui I di ng bl ocks that we wanted to work on.

And so behind that there were several bills
that were conpleted in 2008 and 2009. And the bill in
2008 referenced, as Director Frederick did, the creation

of this working group, the various three-party | eadership

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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system though | believe Director Corra largely |led that
effort, and then the focus on making sure we had al
constituent groups in Womng represented in that effort,
for a variety of reasons, but |argely because they
brought great expertise and varying perspectives to the

i ssues at hand.

And so that mandate was to -- as you can see in
that second bullet, was to make sure that we had adequate
financial resources provided to pay for mitigation and
reclamation costs that the state m ght incur in the event
of a default by a permt holder and that that should be
required through the post-closure care period of a
project, and the group was asked to recomrend the
duration of what a post-closure care period should be.

So that was, by statute, what the working group was
requested to do.

And |'ve just highlighted the bottom of this
line, a handful of other |laws that were passed that |
thi nk Kevin's al ready touched on.

So, moving on to the next line, I'Il just go
t hrough. There are about three slides here that
summari ze some of the efforts of the working group. And
they may be particularly relevant, one, because they were
the framework by which the statute in 2010 was passed,

but also you'll see in the Chapter 24 rule that Bill will

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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speak about today, and the Appendix A of that rule lifts
directly fromthe study that that working group published
in 2009. So it has lived beyond that date.

So the first thing that we did was spend sone
time identifying what the phases of a project were and
then the likely risks inherent to each of those phases,
and then commensurate with that, what would be acceptable
financial assurance tools in each of those phases based
on those types of risks and based on the role of an
operator?

So the one that | highlight here in particular
is where something like self-insurance m ght make sense
if you meet the financial tests denpnstrating your
capability to pay, that nakes sense in an operating
period of a project. It probably nakes |l ess sense in a
post-closure period of a project, when the operator may
or may not still be actively involved in any way.

So those are the kinds of issues that we
explored. And you'll hear sone further discussion also
around these, what we call this |long-term stewardship
period which foll owed the post-closure period and is
essentially after you have received a certificate of site
cl osure, what we viewed to be probably a very nom nal
anmount of risk that continued but not a nonexistent risk.

So there was a separate period that, as you see, is

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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indefinite in duration but hopefully very nom nal in
exposure.

So, moving on to the next slide, this graph,
wanted to just include this to show -- give you a sense
for the risk profile that corresponds with the different
phases of the project. This is a piece that Sally Benson
from Stanford University put together and is pretty
wi dely referenced and accepted as a resource in this
field.

And the two things to point out are certainly
the ranp-up period around when nost of the risk exposure
exi sts, which is during operations and follow ng the
cessation of injection, and what | also just referenced,
which is though a project may conclude, you'll see that
the risk never goes conpletely to zero. So that chart
was created | think to highlight those two things in
particul ar.

And then the working group went through the
effort of specifying what are the major risks that m ght
present in a carbon sequestration project? And we really
had sonme very, very good expertise and guidance in this
effort fromour industry representatives who are on the
wor ki ng group and concl uded -- we've categorized themin
four areas here, though they are further broken down in

t he appendi x, | believe. But you' ve got contam nation of
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under ground water resources, trespass issues, |arge

at nospheric rel ease and potential property damage. Those
were the maj or buckets that the working group identified.
And those, again, as | nentioned, show up in Appendix A
of the proposed rule.

And then the last slide, I want to just
hi ghlight this issue around the post-closure care period
and an added reconmmendation that the working group nade.
So the post-closure care period and, inportantly, | think
the criteria for closure was a widely discussed item
And | think we relied pretty heavily on our state
geol ogi st at that time to talk with -- to help -- as well
as Mark Northam from the School of Energy Resources -- to
hel p i nform what are the types of criteria that would --
that you would need to see the evidence of site
stabilization so that the plume had ceased migration of
any sort.

And so we got confortable that there needed to
be a mnimum period of tinme. In fact, it's not all that
long a period of time. But in addition to that, within
that period of time or whatever period of tine, we needed
to have three consecutive years of plume stabilization
monitoring data to present to DEQ And so that became
the criteria and the recommended | anguage for the post-

cl osure period.
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And then we discussed in sone detail also who's
goi ng to pay for ongoing nonitoring, neasurement,
verification of a project both during this post-closure
care period and followi ng the post-closure care period?
And so the working group reconmended the creation of a
speci al revenue account that woul d be funded either
t hrough a per-ton injection fee or a fixed fee. That was
not decided by the group. | think there was a preference
that the funding mechani sm be coll ected during the
operating period of a project, or certainly prior to site
closure, but that it be a privately funded and then
publicly controlled fund. And so that too becane
| anguage which was incorporated into our statutory
recomrendati ons.

So let me just pause, because I'mgoing to --
I"1l just wal k through a few things on the statute and
ask if there are any questions on that. That was the
mai n body of the work with the working group.

MR. HANSON: We can ask general questions
later. Right?

CHAI RMVAN BEDESSEM  Uh- huh.

MS. LADD: You're welcone to interrupt ne
at any tinme, Madam Chair.

MR. HANSON: Madam Chair, | don't have a

specific question to this. Maybe to one aspect of this.

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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And |'mreading off the document where you highlight the
new sections. And at the beginning -- you know, |I'm
coming fromthe municipalities, and we are dealing with
an aquifer locally, et cetera. And the only thing that
occurs to ne is that there is a little bit of a fox
guardi ng the henhouse aspect here, nanely the injector --
i njection conpany nonitors things. And we've had this

problem of course, locally that we wanted a |licensed

geol ogi st -- that goes into Madam Chairman's field
here -- checking these things.
And that | don't -- I'mtalking now fromthe

| evel of nunicipalities and water supplies, which is
expressed on the second page of the new regulations. To
guarantee these things, 1'd like to suggest that there be
an outside licensed geol ogi st eval uati on, observation of
this matter. Because otherwise, it's sort of the coa
i ndustry nonitoring the coal industry or the injection
i ndustry nonitoring the injection industry. And that's
the aspect froma | ocal perspective, because we've had
this problemlocally. That I1'd like to see addressed.
Thank you, Madam Chair.

MS. LADD: Thank you, Madam Chair and
M. Hanson. | appreciate the comment. And | don't know
there's a direct question for me at this point, but ny

guess is that M. Tillman --
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MR. HANSON: That's why | didn't know
whet her to address it now or later. | didn't know where
it would fit.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  We can get to it
| ater.

MS. LADD: Madam Chair, if it's your
pl easure --

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  Yes.

MS. LADD: -- we'll come back to that
questi on.

MR. HANSON: [|'msorry. |t probably was
too early.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM | think it's fine
This way he can mull it over.

MR. HANSON: Al right. Mill it over now

MS. LADD: So, highlighting the statutory
requirements -- and Director Frederick did a very nice

job of describing what I would call the ingredients that
went into this rule. And you' ve got the ingredients by
EPA that probably make up a | arge anount of the changes
to this docunment. But the statute that was passed in

2010 is another ingredient that is incorporated here.

And so you'll see that we address this issue of creation
of the special revenue account. These were -- just for
background, | was trying to remenber the timng nyself,
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when Director Frederick was speaking. | believe we
presented to the Joint Judiciary Committee in 2009, the
fall of 2009. And in |large part, the draft statute that
was recomrended by the working group was accepted
unchanged and put forward by various |egislators in that
foll owi ng session.

So we included in that recommended statute this
speci al revenue account |anguage, as well as -- and |'1l]
just highlight these conponents to 35-11-313 which you
will see also in this -- in the rule today. Certificate
of insurance for personal injury and property damage, the
authority to devel op procedures for the type and anount
of bonds to assure operator conplies with rules and
requi rements and has adequate financial resources to pay
for mtigation and reclamation in event of default,
various reporting requirenents, and as well as |anguage
that allows for adjustnent of bonds or other financial
assurance instruments, proof of conpliance, replacenent,
substitution, forfeiture and rel ease procedures.

And then you see that same | anguage around not
sooner than ten years and three years of site
stabilization pertaining to post closure. And then |
believe there's | anguage requiring essentially
conmuni cation with adjacent | andowners that m ght be

affected by a project. That is the affidavit |anguage
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noted here in this slide. And then repealing a portion
of -- essentially repealing a portion of the prior
st at ut e.

So that summari zes the work of the working
group. And | think we felt Iike we nade pretty good
headway, but we still had some questions. [|f you think
about those requirenments, for those of us that do math
for a living, you're still sort of stuck saying, well
how do | go about trying to figure out how nmuch nmoney to
require folks to put in? O to M. Hanson's comrent, if
that recommendation is coming froma conmpany, how do
know I should rely upon it, and how do | meke sure
there's a robust approach to -- and a fair one, but
essentially a defensible process in place?

And so that's what sonme of these additiona
studies intended to do and | think did help us in that
effort. | think I'd be wong in saying that -- if | were
to say that we've answered every question we ever had on
the topic of how much noney and exactly how nuch an
operator needs to put in a special revenue account. But
I think we have good information, particularly as a
result of that valuation study, which is avail able.

I'mgoing to highlight a couple points in the
project site that they did a study on. But if anybody

woul d like to see the valuation study itself, it is quite
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conprehensive. It's probably 120 pages or so. |It's very

hel pful on financial assurance if anybody's interested.
MR. FREDERI CK: That, by the way,

val uati on study was the outcone of that national working

group, the IEC. IEC is Industrial Econom cs.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM Is that avail able on

the Web?

MR. FREDERICK: It is. | Googled it just
yesterday, | believe.

MS. LADD: And Director Frederick did a
nice job of describing the participants. | wanted to

hi ghli ght a couple of others, particularly in that
national effort, because it really actually was an
international effort. There were representatives from
Canada -- essentially, Australia and Canada, as you m ght
guess, have a vested interest in these issues, as well.
And so | think, in fact, the primary funder of that work
effort was an organi zation called the d obal CCS
Institute based out of Australia. And so they, together
with -- | want to say it was a policy group out of
Toronto in particular that was involved in that project.
And then in the 1 0GCC report -- or, work effort, | wanted
to mention that | believe the Province of Al berta was

al so a contributing nmenber. So we've had a great

international flavor to sone of this work, as well.
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So, moving on, | wanted to -- so we've gone
t hrough the statute.
Sorry, Ms. Cahn. | realize | probably didn't
keep up with ny slides as | was speaking.
So the next -- the next slide is just a brief

summary of EPA requirenents in the Class VI rule. And
think the main thing I wanted to highlight here, which
Director Frederick's already done, is if you seek
primacy, which Wyom ng understandably would like to do,
there's not a lot of flexibility in adopting the Class VI
permt rules as witten. And certainly there's nothing
that limts us frombeing nore restrictive. And |I've

hi ghli ghted, for exanple, our |anguage on the post-
closure care period is nmore restrictive than EPA' s

| anguage.

And then there's also a very useful guidance
docunent that EPA put out that talked in great detail
about different acceptable financial assurance
mechani snms, when they can be used, how they can get
reduced, how you can adjust themover time. And that's a
very useful tool.

And the last point | want to just highlight is
this issue of there is not specificity in the EPA
docunment or in our proposed rule about liability which

m ght still exist after the site has been closed. And

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
1. 800. 444. 2826



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Hearing to Di scuss Proposed Revisions

*Non DEQ Parties contact 307-635-4424 to purchase copy*
29

think maybe |1'd just comment that there's a | ot of

di scussion in that | 0OGCC effort around whether or not al
of the liability had been elimnated. And that remains a
matter of discussion, | think. There's just no history
to answer that question definitively. But fromny
standpoint, | think it's still an issue.

So the key takeaways fromall of this work
effort, which spanned nore or |ess about four or five
years, is, as | just mentioned, there are a limted
number of geol ogi ¢ sequestration projects that even
exist. So we would expect that the financial assurance
approach process and the rules likely would need to
evol ve over time and with nore experience. And | would
certainly recomend that Wom ng continue to stay attuned
to those efforts el sewhere, because it's entirely
possible it will take place outside of our state
boundaries. Qur desire to seek prinmacy, we' ve talked
about, and then a tinmeline for that, and the need to have
a very clear set of guidelines for transitioning from an
EOR operation to a permanent sequestration operation, so
the Class Il, Class VI permt issues.

One of the things in this next, really, three
bullets were findings both in the working group efforts,
as well as the valuation study that IEC did. You can't

say enough about the value of good site selection. And
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to that end al so, what we found in this sanple project
was the purity of the CO2 stream There's a |lot of H2S
in the CO2 stream A potential for liabilities is
increased significantly.

A second thing which you'll see incorporated
into the rule and I'Il speak a little nore about is the
i mportance of a robust nodeling effort. And in our case
we' re recommendi ng a Monte Carlo type of analysis or a
probability-driven nodel as the proposed best effort.
And then what we saw with this sanple project was that
post-injection site care. So, once the operation has

ceased at a well-sited project, shouldn't cost nore than

about a dollar a ton for a 50-mllion-ton-per-annum
project. So it gave us a good baroneter for where you
m ght start. |If you had a project cone forward and you

wanted to set a recomrended doll ar anmpbunt, that would be
a reasonable place to start.

And then the last thing I'Il highlight, the
wor ki ng group report, which is also a pretty |engthy
docunent, does spend sone tinme tal king about the
potential creation of a trust fund that m ght |ook |ike
privately funded but publicly controlled funds where --
where you are addressing the need to potentially cover
catastrophic risk in a very long-term period of tine.

That issue was not taken up by the |egislature and has
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not been codified in any way.

So | wanted to spend just a couple mnutes -- |
can spend as much time or as little time on this topic as
you'd like. But since the statute incorporates this
| anguage -- or, excuse nme -- the rule incorporates
proposed | anguage, |'musing probability-driven nodeling.
I wanted to do a little bit of a refresher on what that
is and why you do it. And | apologize. |'msure you
are -- you all are -- have probably scientific
backgrounds and have | ooked at nore probability
di stribution curves than | do or have. But | thought it
m ght be useful to take five mnutes to do that and then
to share with you the sanple results that canme out of
this one study that we did.

So the first thing to note is we've talked
about the need to use sonething other than a -- a sort of
sinple tool. W'd like to recommend sone type of a Monte
Carl o probability nodeling, that those cost curves should
| ook at risk probabilities, potential outconmes and
damages estimates in the creation of that nodel, which
will generate a series of expected |osses under a variety
of events. And then that probability distribution, we
have asked fol ks to estimte danages at 50th percentil e,
95t h percentile and 99th percentile. W have not said

that you must set your financial assurance limt to be at
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the 99th percentile, but | would certainly professionally
recommend you not set it below 95th percentile. So,

ei ther way, what we wanted to do was show -- we'd like to
see the data for what the distribution curve |ooks |ike
at all three of those confidence intervals.

So a couple of -- again, | wanted you to have
this information. | don't need to read through it all
But why do you use something |like probability modeling?
Typically because you've got a fair anount of uncertainty
in projecting the future. And the best you can do is
estimate the expected val ue.

And so inherent to that, you end up with a
creation of a range of values, as opposed to a singular
estimate. And by using a range of values instead of a
single, you essentially can create a nore realistic
pi cture of what m ght occur in the future. This is
somewhat different froma single forecasting nodel that
you m ght develop, but it is certainly an industry-
accepted, preferred way of estimating risk and cost
esti mat es.

So the very sinple exanple I've highlighted in
the m ddle of the page, in a construction project, you
m ght estimate the time it will take to conplete a
particul ar job based on some know edge and the tinme it

m ght take. And in the worst possible case, you night
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look at minimumtine -- or, the maximumtime and then the
mnimmtinme. This would in a -- what you get by taking
not just a singular point in tine, is you end up with a
range of val ues based on any nunber of those kinds of
scenari os which could occur

And on the next page, you see a -- what you end

up with in a distribution curve is how likely the
resulting outcomes are. And a typical analysis wll
nodel hundreds or thousands of scenarios. In this IEC
effort we did, it was 100,000 runs of a set of inputs to
that nmodel. So it's just a much nore robust potenti al
set of outcomes that you mght be trying to cover.

So, with that background, let me just show you
the one sanple project that we did and go through that,
which was the -- the project that was selected was a
rejected FutureGen site in Jewett, Texas. And the reason
they sel ected that project was because, in fact, there
was a fair anmount of probability information that was
submtted as just part of the FutureGen application. So
there was a decent ampunt of data that you could use as a
starting point.

Then we spent tinme identifying and di scussing
what are the relevant risk events? Not dissimlar from
what the carbon sequestration working group did in

identifying risk elenents that are a part of Appendix A
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now. Then we spent time tal king about the nmagnitude of

t hose events and the probability of those events.
there were a couple of core issues that
For exanpl e,

| arge bearing on potenti al

estimte

s, so health effects of the potenti al

proximty to a popul ation center

ri sk outcomes and damages

rel ease of some magni tude, for exanple.

we | ooked at the potenti al

t hey had

And so we gat hered that

i nformati on.

costs of those inpacts.

So

34

And so

came up in that.

had a very

at nospheric

And t hen

| believe damages estimates on health care costs

under a variety of health scenarios.

of actuarial dat

curve around damages related to human healt h.

were use

conpani e
magni t ud

you can

There's just a | ot

a that is available to create a cost

d. And they ran a 100, 000- nodel scenari o.

Now, |

ook, |'msensitive to

So t hose

-- |1 do think nost

s, if they're proposing a project of this

e, do have this capability in-house. But if not,

still create --

this recommended process even through a sinple Excel

nmodel .

reason -

| nean,

you can do this yourself.

- it sounds a little conplicated, but | think

it's inportant,

curve.

and this

and it's pretty manageabl e.

And then we end up with this distribution

And as you'll see in this part

i s what

I wanted to highlight
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the potential costs vary pretty significantly between the
50th percentile and the 95th percentile, and then they
vary a reasonable amount further in the 99th percentile.
And what we're saying is there is a -- take the 95th
percentile. W're saying there is a five percent

i kel'i hood that total danmages would be higher than that
dol l ar ampunt. That's the conclusion. And so, if I'ma
state regulator, |I'mthinking about what is the dollar
amount of financial assurance |'m going to ask to be
covered to cover for these potential risks and to protect
the constituents in the state of Wom ng and not inpede
business in a way that you wouldn't want to, either? But
what's realistic to ask the fol ks?

So, in nmost cases, a 95 percent, which is sort
of a confidence interval, two-tinme confidence interval
woul d be an accepted approach. But that's up to people
smarter than ne to decide, ultimtely.

So | wanted to show this example. We really |
think were pleased to have gone through this exercise.
And that report is -- | think it's quite good and pretty
illumnating. So |I'd encourage you to | ook at that if
you'd like to |l earn nore

And then I'd just sort of conclude these
remar ks by tal king about what's next. Director Frederick

tal ked about seeking primacy and the tim ng around that
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and essentially just asking that folks provide a
financial assurance calculation that follows these
recommended -- this recommended approach as nuch as
anything. And then | think that's -- | wanted to just
summarize sort of our efforts to date. And I'm here as
soneone who can answer probably nore questions on
economi c issues if there are any questions about that.

So thank you for the opportunity. And I'II
turn it over to nmy coll eague.

Bill, would you like to switch seats?

36

MR. TILLMAN: Thank you, Laura, for giving

t hat background history on proposed changes to the
regulation. And as Adm nistrator Frederick has stated
before, the mpjority of these changes that we're

proposing with this chapter are to address financi al

assurance or financial responsibility, and they come from

t he Code of Federal Regul ations 40 CFR 146.85. And so

that is going to be the bulk of those changes. There are

al so sone statutory changes that were added that nmaybe
weren't addressed in the Code of Federal Regulations but
wer e necessary, being fromthe working group, and
therefore made into statute that we also wanted to
addr ess.

I'm |l ooking at -- the version I'm | ooking at

woul d be the strike-and-underline version. And to start,
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just kind of walk through these. And I'm not going to
read each and every condition. ['Il try to highlight or
at |least let you know where the condition came from
Because, again, alnpost all of these cone from federal
regulations, so | can cite the statute and verse as to
where it originated. And a lot of the |anguage is
basically straight out of the Code of Federal

Regul ations. So, if it's confusing, it's because the
nati onal regul ati ons are confusing. But we tried to add
sone clarity where we could so that, again, we could
under stand what we're asking the regulated comunity to
gi ve us.

Starting on page 24-1 in Section 1, we added
sone | anguage basically to address why the changes were
made. And nanely, these are rules and regulations to
provide the financial assurance as codified in our state
statute 35-11-13 -- or, 313.

Movi ng on to page 24-3, one of the things that
the legislature asked us to define, and that was plunme
stabilization, because that's going to be a key conponent
to releasing people fromthis financial assurance
responsibility. And we took a stab at this definition.
And again, on 24-3 we define plune stabilization as a
carbon di oxide that has been injected subsurface that

essentially no | onger expands vertically or horizontally
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and poses no threat to underground sources of drinking
wat er, human health, safety or the environment.

And again, we said essentially doesn't npove,
because, again, there may be m ni mal nmovenent that, from
a geol ogi st's standpoint or just fromour adm nistrator's
st andpoint, he can take that data and deci de whet her or
not we have achieved plunme stabilization, and that is a
key conmponent to release fromfinancial assurance.

Movi ng on to page 24-5 in Section 3 on
applicability, Section (b)(i). And basically this
addresses a condition from CFR 146.81(c) and basically
requires permts for Class | and Class V injection wells
that would |ikely becone carbon sequestration wells, the
procedure that they nust go through and information they
must submit showi ng that the wells were engi neered and
constructed in conpliance with what we would require for
a Class VI carbon sequestration well.

In Part (c)(i), this conmes from Code of Federa
Regul ati ons 144.19(b) (1) through (8). And these are
basically things to consi der when addressing the
permtting of a Class VI well or people -- excuse ne.
Yes, consideration for a Class VI permt. And they go
(a) through (i). And Part (c)(ii) comes from 144.19(a).
And basically it says anyone that's a Class Il well,

wanting to become a Class VI well, needs to get a Class

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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VI pernmit when there's a threat to the underground

sources of drinking water. Again, that

Code of Federal Regul ations.

Part

operation for

Class 11

drinki ng water,

operation that

cones fromthe

(iii) is just a clarifying alternative

a Class Il well. Because,

again, if it's a

doesn't threaten underground

we're allowing themto continue as a

tion.

Class Il operation. And later on, if they would like to
become a Class VI well, that is their op

Moving on to 24-17, at the bottom of the page,
Part (c), this conmes from state statute,

requires public liability.

in addition to the financial

assurance.

whi ch, agai n,

And this public liability is

It's a separate

i nsurance policy, again, as Ms. Ladd had referenced.

This covers the event of personal injury or property

damage t hat
carbon sequestrati on project.

fromstate statute,

may be, | guess, collater

liability insurance.

al

whi ch says we must h

damage from a

And this cones, again,

ave public

Thi s | anguage was borrowed fromthe Land

Qual ity Division because, again, fromthe Land Quality

coal operations, they have a sinmlar

pub

lic liability

i nsurance policy. And | basically lifted that sane

simlar

| anguage and incorporated it

Part

her

e in our chapter.

(iii), where we discuss actual dollar

Womi ng Reporting Service
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amounts, | |ooked at what the coal industry, what they
have in their chapter, and just moved it up. This is not
an absolute. It was kind of a best guess at what we

t hought that dollar amount should be. Again, we haven't
had any comrent from industry. So, again, wthout any

hi story, we're not really sure if that's nore than
enough, not enough. |It's at least a start at, again,
obt ai ni ng some public liability insurance, again,
required by statute.

And again, on Part (d), it addresses the self-
i nsurance. And again, if they're a |arge enough conpany
where they can't self-insure, that again has to be
denmonstrated to the adm nistrator and his satisfaction
whet her or not that would be an acceptable form of public
liability.

Movi ng on to page 24-24, Section 10. This was
added. This was not in the original chapter. And it's
the injection depth waiver that was, again, |ater
codified by the CFR, Code of Federal Regul ations, that
needed to be incorporated. And this is basically
verbatim CFR 146.95, front to back, basically federa
| anguage that if you would |ike an exception or to go
past that depth waiver, all the requirenents that you
must conmply with. And again, this is federal |anguage.

Not hi ng added. Nothing taken away fromit.

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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And, Board Chairman, M. Hanson, again, your
conment as far as that alternative view to nonitoring of
the injection site, nmost of the changes are federal
| anguage. Again, they're not -- they don't address that.
But again, that's something we can consider and
definitely take that comment into consideration and maybe
have additional information -- or, excuse me -- an
additional requirement to this chapter. W'l definitely
consi der your comment there.

Madam Chair ?

CHAl RMVAN BEDESSEM  Wel |, all the
monitoring is submtted to the agency for your review.
MR, TILLMAN: Correct.

MS. CAHN: Bill, can you please repeat
Marge' s question or comment ?

MR. TILLMAN: Marge said that basically
all the information is subnmitted to the Division or to
t he Departnent for our review for approval. So this
requi rement for an outside party may be redundant. But
again, it's sonmething to consider.

Movi ng on to page 24-36, roughly mddle of the
page, (iv), this edition cones from State Statute
35-11-313(f)(ii)(M. And basically it's a notice to
surface owners, mineral claimnts, of closure of the site

and just basically notification requirenent through state

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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st at ut e.

Part Bis from35-11-313(b)(i)(f). And it
basically says that when you get this notice that it's
site closure, that it's also a mechanismfor requiring a
public meeting if you would like or a public hearing if
the owners of those entities would request one. And it
was also a part of the statute that we give that
opportunity.

The bul k of the changes, again, are in Section
19 on page 24-38. And it conmes from CFR 146.85. And it
outlines all the financial responsibilities. What |I've
al so nested in there is fromthe working group that
Ms. Ladd referred to. In Part (b), this was fromthe
wor ki ng group, and this is where we actually give them
the basis to formtheir -- the how of how they're going
to develop this cost estimate and the different phases of
the project, and depending on where they're at, things
they need to consider or the parts of the project that we
deem inportant for themto consider.

Also fromthe working group, if you nove to
page 24-39(i), these are all the -- these are the things
that the working group considered to be things to
consider in the events that would drive that cost
estimate. And again, this is fromthe working group.

And | referred to the table Appendix B on (ii) -- or,

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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excuse me. Appendix A -- as the table. Again, it gives
alittle bit nmore detail of the activities associ ated
with each of these -- or, excuse me -- nore detail of
activities associated with these, | guess, higher
categories. But again, that comes fromthe working
group.

And as Ms. Ladd also referred to on Part (iii),
this is where we tal k about the cost estimate, the
mul ti di sci plinary nodel using that Monte Carlo or
probabilistic framework.

I"Il refer to line numbers. I'msorry. |I'm
ki nd of junping around here. On line 1886 on page 24-39,
that's, again, where we actually tell themthe type of
nmodel i ng that they need to use in devel oping this cost
estimte that Ms. Ladd also referred to in her
presentation.

On line 1895, Part (e), on 24-39, this cones
from CFR 146.93. And this, again, addresses that speci al
revenue account after site closure -- or, excuse nme --
site post closure that they have to give us a cost
estimate for the neasuring, nonitoring and verification
of the sequestration. Again, this is our long-term
monitoring that we, again, are trying to establish noney
to make sure that in the event sonething may happen down

the road, that we still have financial assurance to

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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addr ess that.

On page 24-40, on line 1902, we give, again,
sone of the qualifying instrunents for financial
assurance, again, com ng from Code of Federal Regul ations
146.85(a) (i), listing all the types of instrunents that
are acceptable. And again, we talk about continuation,
the types of instruments that they need, how they need to
be approved by the director, so on and so forth.

Do | need to go through in detail some of these
ot her conditions? Because, again, they come straight
fromthe Code of Federal Regul ations and basically just
address all the aspects of the financial responsibility.

On page 24-44, toward the end of the section,
lines 2100 on down to 2121, we discussed are being
rel eased fromfinancial responsibility. Part (m((iii),
which is on line 2112, was basically clarification
because we're allowing -- being that the project --
sequestrati on project can be phased, once certain phases
are conpleted, we give themthe opportunity for partial
rel ease fromsome of their financial responsibility. And
that is just, | guess, giving theman option if they
would Iike to release some of that nmoney that they have
sitting out there for projects or part of the project
that's passed and cl osed.

And on Part (n), follow ng rel ease of financial

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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assurance, it has to be, again, approved by the director
and gives them again, the chance to recertify or get a
different | evel of financial assurance dependi ng on where
they are with the project.

And again, like |I said, the bulk of these
changes are straight fromthe Code of Federa
Regul ati ons. Sone of them conme fromstate statute. And
again, there's maybe one or two that just added
clarification to the information provided or that were
request ed.

MR. HANSON: Madam Chair, may | ask a
question?

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  Yes.

MR. HANSON: Goi ng back to 24-5, just a
qui ck question. Under (c)(i), Section (c)(i), "After
consultation,"” et cetera, there's this very tricky word
in there, nanmely "may." Who determ nes what here when it
says "may"? Because there's a whole list comng. And
it's sort of open-ended. |[If you say "will," "shall," |
like that. But "may" is sort of, well, nmaybe yeah, nmaybe
no.

MR. TILLMAN: Again, that |anguage is from
Code of Federal Regulations. | think it gives the
adm nistrator the flexibility as to whether or not he

deens those -- these aspects inportant or needs further

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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for that to al

i n determ ning whether or

46

not this pernit

So the word "may" | believe is appropriate

low that flexibility.

MR. HANSON: That's a bit w shy-washy.

MR, TILLMAN: Yes, sir.

But with purpose.

MR. HANSON: W th purpose.

| admit that.

Ckay.

MR. FREDERI CK: Let ne el aborate on this a

little bit. This is the issue of transitioning a Cl ass
Il well to a Class VI well. And a Class Il well, anpng
other things, is used for enhanced oil recovery. 1In this

case, it would be carbon di oxide for

recovery.

But

gui dance docunent

wells transiti

enhanced oi

about a year and a half ago EPA published a

oned to Class VI wells,

or

when.

on how they expect to see Class |

And t hey

essentially identified these criteria on 24-5 beginning

at line 233 --

| believe there's seven of them or

as considerations that should be undertaken either

operator or by the Class VI director,

see whet her or

and so forth,

which is DEQ

ni ne --

by the

to

not, due to increased injection pressures

that there nmay now be a potenti al

for

| eakage of the CO2 into an underground source of drinking

wat er, which

mlligrams per

s an aquifer that contains |ess than 10, 000

total dissol ved solids.
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Several states, including Wom ng, expressed
sonme concern with the guidance docunent's failure, |
guess, to recognize that in many states, including
Wom ng, while, indeed, Class Il wells were EOR,
regul ated by a different agency, the Ol and Gas
Conservation Commi ssion, they' re the agency that knows
nmor e about evaluating injection pressures into oi
reservoirs than DEQ does.

And it was the State of Wom ng's opinion, at
|l east as far as | know, and it was our opinion at DEQ
that these types of analysis should be conpleted by the
Ol and Gas Conservation Conm ssion or the operator, not
DEQ But the rule as witten seenms to suggest that,
well, it would be the Class VI director, it would be DEQ
who woul d be the one that woul d be responsible for
requiring that a Class Il operation seek a Class Vi
permit. And so there's a little bit of a conundrum
t here.

And to the question why "may" required permt

instead of "shall,"” in reference to the director of DEQ
having that responsibility, | guess, we sinply don't
agree with EPA that that particular responsibility should
be DEQs. We try to recognize that we, being DEQ can do

that but only after consultation with the O | and Gas

Comm ssion. Because, arguably, they're the experts in

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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eval uating whether this potential risk that would trigger
a Class VI permt actually exists or not.

Furthernore, we al so recogni ze that the way the
federal rule -- final federal rule came out, there
appears to be a little bit of a conflict in terns of
di stinguishing when a Class Il EOR well requires a Cl ass
VI in the federal regul ations, as opposed to what the
Wom ng | egislature says in our statutes. There's a
question as to whether they align well enough. W think
the question is significant enough that in anticipation
of the State of Wyom ng seeking to obtain primacy for the
program and working with the governor's office, we've
recommended that the issue be addressed through an

interimstudy conmttee of the Womn ng | egislature. And,

i ndeed, that will be one of the topics they'll be | ooking
at .

We' |l be presenting the problem or potenti al
problem | guess, in our perspective, at |least, at the

mnerals commttee interimstudy nmeeting in Casper, |
bel i eve May 28th, for your information.

So, to the question again, this |anguage here
as currently witten will certainly be sonething that
will be discussed. | think there's a potential that --
think it's nost likely there won't be any suggested

revisions to it now | think it provides what we need to
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satisfy the EPA requirenment but also provides us the
flexibility to nake sure that that consultation with the
O | and Gas Comm ssion does, indeed, occur before that
permt is required.

And | would refer you to page 24-6 on |line 253.
I think it's fairly clear that there will be a
requirement or there is a requirenent for the operator to
apply for a Class VI permit in the event there is an
increased risk. So that requirenent is in place. |
think the -- it's conditioned with the expectation that
DEQ doesn't in and of itself make that decision. Only
makes that decision in consultation with the G| and Gas
Commi ssi on.

MR. HANSON: Madam Chair, the only

suggestion -- that makes sone sense, what you just said
to nme, was that may -- something like that. The director

may, in his best estinmate, or sonething of that nature,

so it isn't so wishy-washy. So we have a statenent, in
their best estimate, they will -- they may require one or
t he ot her. Because there's no "or" in there, either

It's sort of, well

MR. FREDERI CK: So perhaps the director,
in his opinion?

MR. HANSON: In his opinion or estinmate or

what ever, best estimate or sonething of that nature.

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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Thank you.
MR. FREDERI CK: Thank you.
MR. HANSON: ['msorry to hold us up here.
CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  No probl em
MR. HANSON: That's what we're here for
Ri ght ?

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  That's why we're here.
So | have a questi on.

MR. TI LLMAN: Go ahead, Madam Chair.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  So, in Ms. Ladd's
presentation, on the |ast page, the summary and next
steps, there's a bullet that says the proposed rule al so
identifies the need for cal cul ation of cost of
measur ement, nonitoring and verification costs of GS
sites will be deposited into a special revenue account.

So can you point out to nme where anything about a speci al

revenue account is nentioned?

MR. TI LLMAN: Madam Chair, | don't think
we call it out as a special revenue account. Maybe we
could. But | believe I reference --

CHAl RMVAN BEDESSEM  Because | see all this
information requiring conmng up with the cost estimte.
I just don't understand the special revenue account and
how that translates into the verbiage that you have in

t he document.

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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MS. CAHN: Can we turn up Marge's
m crophone? This is Lorie. |'mnot hearing Marge's soft
voice. It's nuffled

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  There it goes.

If you want to go ahead and rephrase ny
question, that would be wonderful.

MS. LADD: 1'd be happy to. 1It's nice to
see your mcrophone is working. Mdam Chair, M. Cahn,
the question was, in the last -- this is Laura Ladd
speaking. In the last slide, |I talk about the fact that

you incorporate the need to reference the special revenue
account and create funding for that. The question was
where does that actually show up in the rule? And

think M. Tillman is correct that the specific |anguage
of reference to a special revenue account is not included
in this rule.

That said, the nmechanism of what that entails,
which is a cost estimate for an MW activity, is
referenced, as | see it, in 24-44, |line 2118, that |ast
section on there, the last part of Section 19. | believe
what we are tal king about there is providing a cost
estimate for that specific purpose. But we don't
reference specifically a special revenue account.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM So all this is

requiring is a cost estimate. It's not requiring the

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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deposit of nonies anywhere or nechani smfor collecting
those moni es.

MS. LADD: That's correct. At |east
that's ny understanding. It doesn't specify what we're
going to do with the noney or where the noney's going to
go.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM O if it's being
submitted. It just says the cost estimte.

MS. LADD: Fair point. And that would be
col l ective, basically. Ri ght? Madam Chair, is that what
you' re sayi ng?

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Where does it say it's
coll ective?

MS. LADD: No. [I'mjust clarifying your
poi nt that there needs to be | anguage that states that it
is collective.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM Or do you need
statutory authority to create the special revenue account
in order to do this? Because right now |'m seeing just a
requi rement for sonmebody to cal culate the noney but no
actual subnmittal of nonies at that point.

MR. FREDERI CK: Ms. Cahn, did you hear
t hat ?

MS. CAHN: Poor, though.

MR. FREDERI CK: The conmment fromthe

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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chai rman was that there's no nention of a special revenue
account and a requirenent to fund nonitoring,
measur ement, verification, or MW, during the post-
cl osure period.

If we would turn to page 24-38, line 1833,
there's a requirenment for owners or operators of Class Vi
wells to denonstrate, maintain financial responsibility
for all applicable phases, including conplete site
reclamation in the event of default. Phases of geol ogic
sequestration are as follows: Line 1844, long-termcare

There's a nuance here that we need to
recogni ze. And the nuance is essentially that in the
post-cl osure phase, there's going to be nonitoring to the
poi nt of demonstration that plune stabilization has
occurred. At that tinme the operator is released fromthe
financial assurance requirenents. That's the nuance.
However, in the regulation, we're saying that you have to
mai ntain financial responsibility for all phases. So the
idea is that the financial responsibility for the
|l ong-termcare phase that's going to be funded through
the special revenue account will, indeed, be suppl enented
by this requirement that funds sonmehow be provided.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM |'m confused as to

where it says that the special revenue account exists and

it's going to be doing that.
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MR. FREDERI CK: No, it doesn't.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  And when it says
applicable, if | was a permt applicant, |I'd say, well
t he docunentati on says that after I'mreleased, so I'm
covered, | have to have financial assurance in post-
closure care until the point where the plune is
stabilized. Right? |Is that correct? Then once the
plume is stabilized, so after that, |I'moff the hook, and

I can say that it's not applicable anynore. So the word

"applicable" -- I'mconcerned about the word
"applicable.” Because, to me, it would say to ne that,
based on the other verbiage in the rule, that |I'm not

responsi ble for financial, you know, requirenments in that
|l ong-termcare part because it doesn't define this other
mechani sm that we've tal ked about but isn't actually
really in the rule.

MR. FREDERI CK: Right. No. And
certainly understand just exactly what you're saying
here. In part, that's why we're having this
conversation, where there's obviously an opinion that we
need further clarification on howthat is going to work.
There's been perhaps a little concern, on ny part, at
| east, about getting into the details of how the speci al
revenue account is going to be funded, or nore precisely,

what the requirenment for funding that special revenue
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account is going to be. And that's a discussion that
still needs to be held not only within the agency, but
al so before the advisory board. And | don't intend to
suggest that we're ready to have that conversation yet.
I don't need to include that discussion in this
regulation to have primacy, however

CHAI RMVAN BEDESSEM  Got cha

MR. FREDERI CK: But |'m not ignoring that
it needs to be addressed at some point in time. So |
think to your point, some clarification is needed there.
We'll certainly take care of that. M recommendation is
going to be that we sinply clarify that funding won't be
directed to the special revenue account to provide for
Il ong-termnonitoring, verification. Leave it as sinple
as that.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  That woul d be fi ne,
just so there's sonmething. Because we're having this
di scussion about it. But if you read the rule and didn't
have the discussion, | don't know that an applicant would
know t hat that even exists and that was your intent at
this point. But you don't need to have, for exanple,
statute authority or something else to go on in order to
establish the special revenue account?

MR. FREDERI CK: Madam Chair, we do have

statutory authority.
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CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Just based general ly
on the Environnental Quality Act?

MR. FREDERI CK:  Yeah.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  That's fine. |

bel i eve you, Adm nistrator Frederick.

56

MR. FREDERICK: | can't put ny finger
right on it.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  That's fine

MR. FREDERI CK: We do.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  That was j ust one
question | had, that | felt -- | understand what you were

getting at, but then I couldn't find the corresponding
thing in the rule to understand how that was going to be
Not necessarily the details, but that it was actually
goi ng to happen.

And then on page 24-39, and | don't know if
this is verbatimfromthe CFR

MR. TILLMAN:  Yes.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM | just am curious that

"entrai ned contam nate rel eases" or "storage rights
infringement"” are in there like they're the name of
sonething. They're capitalized. And they're not in the
definitions. |I'mnot sure why they' re capitalized when

the other things in there are not.

MR. TI LLMAN: Madam Chair, on page 24- 39,

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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l'ine 1856 through 1893, conmes fromthe working group
report. That is not CFR | anguage. That is fromthe
wor ki ng group. And the fact that it's capitalized is
just | capitalized it.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM But it's not a title
so can it just be regular verbiage?

MR. TILLMAN: Yeah. That's not a deal.
just took it fromtheir report. It was capitalized
there. | capitalized it there.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM For consistency, can
we have it be regular? Because when | see that, |'m
| ooking in the definitions to try to figure out what that
is.

MR. TILLMAN: Absolutely. W can
definitely address that.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  But | think my main
question to you, you already answered, and that was what
I was nost interested in.

Lorie or Calvin, do you have any additiona
questions for this group?

MS. CAHN: Yeah. \While we're on -- Madam
Chair, while we're on page 24-39, one of ny questions is
about the Appendix A, the risk activity matrix that's
going to be used in the Monte Carlo sinulations.

Actually, let's talk about Monte Carlo simnulations. How

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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readily available is this Monte Carl o nodel for the
i ndustry? What does it cost to run this nodel? I'm
fam liar with Monte Carlo simulations because | did ny
master's thesis on it. But that was nmany years ago. And

at that tinme they were not readily available. So I'm
just curious about that.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  She's not letting on
her age.

MS. LADD: Madam Chair, Ms. Cahn, thank
you for the question. | think my answer to that is --
woul d have two answers. One, you can create an Exce
model using Monte Carlo simulation with sonme nodest
ampunt of effort to learn how to do something in Excel
It's more than the basic things we all probably do. But
I think it can be learned in a few hours of tinme if a
person wanted to do that. | tend to believe nost of
t hese conpani es have anal ysts and finance fol ks that are
reasonably advanced in Excel and could use that tool

That said, ny preferred recommendati on, anyway,
woul d be that you engage -- that we would hope that a
third-party economics firmmght do this work for them so
that there is some objectivity to the recomendati on or
sone third-party analysis. And I think that work could
cost something on the order of $50,000. Wbuldn't be

unusual for it to cost sonmething like that, particularly

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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if afirmhired | EC or one of these other consulting
firms.

I am aware, for exanple, that the folks in
Al berta were keen to try to make sure there were multiple
consulting firms that could do this work at a price that
woul dn't be so onerous and had a coupl e ot her
recommendati ons beyond | EC. | EC happened to be pretty
expensive. So there is a marketplace for it. It's just
a rough estimate, but | think it could cost $50,000 or
sonething to do that work.

MS. CAHN:  And then what about, you know,
the nodel's only going to be as good as the data going
into the nodel. And so how reliable are the PDFs, the
functions, the probably distribution functions, going
into the nodel? |Is that just a flat --

MS. LADD: Madam Chair, Ms. Cahn, that is
an excellent question. | think that the -- what you get
out is only as good as what you put in. No doubt about
it. | think that what DEQ would want to do, regardless
of whether a third party or an in-house effort was
conpleted, is to ask for a summary of the probabilities
and the cost curves used and the assunptions used in the
creation of that nodel to validate independently
thensel ves whet her that seened reasonabl e and robust.

And wherever possible -- for exanple, in the

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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wor k that was done by | EC, wherever possible, you want to
just use third-party information that's commonly known,
like well failures and that kind of information. So
you're | ooking for data that is an input to the nodel
that is generated by a third party in simlar activities.
I think, frankly, even in this study we
struggled with -- I'mlooking at Director Frederick if he
wants to el aborate. But we struggled with the
assunptions in two or three instances out of, | don't
know, a dozen of the inputs. That's my sort of
recollection. It's not that easy to -- it takes sone
t hought to try to gather the best input you can. And
it's probably -- at this stage, given the infancy of the
i ndustry, it's pretty good. You could expect something
woul d be pretty good if they went through this effort,
but it's not going to be perfect.
If you want to add anything .

MR. FREDERI CK: Sure, just a little bit.
We certainly recognize that, to a degree, we're breaking
sonme new ground here. Unfortunately, there isn't a
cookbook that's been devel oped that we can pull off the
shel f and say, you know, we like this. This is what
we're going to do here. So we certainly recognize that
we need to nove ahead. We think we've got a good basis

bui I di ng on the work that was done by the Wom ng worki ng

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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group, by IEC, the national working group, perhaps a
collection of the -- the nost people that would be

fam liar at least in a sense of having an intelligent
conversation and di scussion about how to skin this cat.
This is the state of the art today as we know it.

That's not to say that we recognize there
certainly are sonme inperfections that can be inproved
upon. And | fully expect that sonmeday when things get a
little bit perhaps nmore clear or there's a better nethod
out there, we'll be back before you. But we don't want
to wait until that point in time. W want to nmove ahead.
We think we've got a good process here. So that's kind
of where we're at.

MS. LADD: Madam Chair, Ms. Cahn, | think
I want to just add, when eval uated what kind of process
to recommend, we were unconfortable that estimting cost
t hrough a single data point or a single set of
experiences was sufficient, given the uncertainty created
by tinme and the nascency of this industry. So it's
probably the best available alternative and not in an
i nperfect situation.

CHAlI RMAN BEDESSEM  Addi ti onal conments,
Lorie?

MS. CAHN: | guess | would be -- |

appreci ate what Kevin and Laura have said and agree with

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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them | like Laura's suggestion to have this produced by
an i ndependent party. But | have another question for
Kevin, and that is do you feel that you have enough
peopl e or the proper people on your staff that can

eval uate the report that you'll get from-- if you get it

from an i ndependent? Whether you get it from an

i ndependent group or whether you get it fromthe
conpani es proposing to do this, do you have the people on
staff available to really assess the assunptions that
went in, adequacy of the assunptions, (inaudible)
functions?

MR. FREDERI CK: Good question, Lorie. W
don't at the time. However, there's no need at this
time. And it's probably going to be sone time. W don't
know how | ong. Could be tonmorrow. It could be next
year. Could be further out in the future when we wil
need that type of expertise and talent.

But | can tell you this, that the legislature
agreed with Director Corra's recommendation at the tine
that we did need that expertise specifically, and they
agreed to essentially provide authorization to hire an
i ndi vidual to performthose functions for DEQ when the
time cane. So it's been recognized, and it's certainly
avail able to us.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Any further questions,

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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Lorie?
MS. CAHN: | have sone questions while
we're on the section, simlar to -- on line 1869 -- and
I'"'min the red-line strikeout -- |I'm assum ng that when

you say storage rights infringenent which is a form of
m neral rights infringe, so |I'massuning that nmeans it's
a subset of mineral rights infringenments?
MR. FREDERI CK: Interesting question. As

I understand it, as established by the Woni ng
| egi sl ature, pore space actually falls within the estate
of the surface owner, as opposed to the m neral owner. |
think it reasonably can be viewed as a separate estate
that can be severed fromthe surface estate if the
surface estate owner wi shes to sell it, for instance, or
| ease it.

So | don't think it's precise to say that it's
a subset of the mneral estate, but | think it recognizes
that both the mineral estate and the pore space are
simlar in that the -- the requirenent of pore space
availability is a requirenent for each to have any type
of value, essentially, at least as it relates to oil and
gas devel opment. M neral devel opnent, perhaps not so
much. But | don't think it's a subset, Ms. Cahn

MS. CAHN: | guess |'m asking the question

because |I'm not sure about the | anguage. |I'mtrying to

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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understand the difference between storage rights
i nfringement and mneral rights infringement in this
application. And do we need definitions? Do we need
definitions of those, and do we need to address them as
two separate issues? Right now nmy understanding is the
way it's worded, if there were to be -- excuse nme for a
second. If there were to be a comm after storage rights
infringenment, then -- so it would be storage rights

i nfringenment, conma, which is a formof mneral rights
infringenment. Then are we only talking about the storage
rights infringement, or do we also want themto address
m neral rights infringenment?

So | don't understand the differences. | guess
| feel like we need sone definitions. And, you know, you
need to think about whether those need to be two separate
things or one is a subset of another, or are you only
tal ki ng about one and not the other? So the |anguage is
confusing to ne.

MR. FREDERI CK: Right. Thank you for the
question. | agree. What we need to do, Ms. Cahn, is
revisit the working group reports and report -- | should
say their final report that talked about this, see if we
can make a little bit nore clarification on whether
there's a distinction between storage rights infringenment

as a formof mneral rights infringenent and sinply

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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m neral rights infringenment, which, as you pointed out,
is already covered on 1861. W'I| take another | ook at
that. Thank you.

MS. CAHN: Thank you. And then |I had a
question on line 1896 with the use of the word "sites."
It's not clear to nme if that should be plural or
possessi ve or both.

MR. TI LLMAN: Ms. Cahn, that came from
federal |anguage direct. 1'll take a look at that. That
is fromthe Code of Federal Regulations, so we'll |ook at

it.

MS. CAHN: Okay. Great.

MR. HANSON: Shoul d have an apostrophe.

MS. CAHN:  And then on |ine 1883, when you
start tal king about the risk activity matrix in Appendi X
A, it looks a little cryptic to nme to just have that
appendi x and say you're going to have to use this, and
not much in the way of any kind of gui dance on how to do
it. So |l don't know if you're planning on a guideline to
conme out or later a worksheet or sonmething that would
hel p sonmebody with howto do this. To me, it was -- |
don't know if it belongs in the regulation. But at sone
poi nt, there needs to be sonme kind of information about
how to go fromthis | anguage to the appendi x tabl es.

MR. TI LLMAN: Ms. Cahn, the intent of

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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Tabl e A or Appendi x A was nore detailed than what |

was -- what | thought was necessary in the actual rule.
And that's why | put it as an appendix. So it gave a | ot
more detail for each of those type of scenarios as to
what shoul d be possibly considered. And I thought

that -- | guess | didn't consider that to be expl ai ned
other than it's -- it's obviously nore detailed and to be
used in their evaluation of making their cost estinmate.
By all neans, if there is some confusion -- we haven't
had any comrents fromindustry or from anybody, so those
fol ks that would actually be doing this and making that
cost estimate were not -- | would assume that they're
confortable with that table and how to apply it. If
there needs to be further clarification, we can have a
policy to address that.

MR. FREDERI CK: Ms. Cahn, | think your
point is that perhaps it needs to be a little bit nore
clearer as to what the purpose of Appendix A is and what
our expectations were to use, maybe. Wuld it help to
per haps just make that a little bit nore clear in terns
of say, for instance, those risks identified in Appendix
A shall be considered or evaluated during the risk
assessment process?

MS. CAHN: That's correct.

MR. FREDERI CK: Thank you.

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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MS. CAHN: And then if we junp to Table A,
I had a | ot of questions. 1'll start with 1.4. After
"Acts of God," it says "seismic event." And so ny
question there is, is that the only act of God that you

want themto look at? So is this an e.g. or ani.e.? |Is

this a "such as," or is this a -- or is that a "that is"?
MR. Tl LLMAN: I'' m conf used.
CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  Wel |, | think what

Lorie's asking is that Item 1.4, "Act of God," in

parent heses next to it is "seismc event." So are those
synonynous, or are you looking at nultiple different acts
of God and an exanple is a seismc event?

MR. FREDERICK: As | recall, that was

i ntended to be an exanpl e. However, | think, in ny
recollection -- Laura, correct me if I'mwong -- that
seened to have been the nost likely type of act-of-CGod

event that m ght occur here in Wom ng that could be
considered. Obviously other types of events associ ated
with, quote, unquote, an act of God certainly may occur.
But to try and antici pate what tornado damage, for

i nstance, on an injection site mght |look |ike and

whet her or not that m ght touch an injection well and
destroy it and thus require sone type of financial
assurance requirenment to cover that event, you know, we

start getting off into a little bit of the unpredictable.
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So | think the focus was really let's at |east
specifically | ook at seismc events at a m ninmum and
whet her or not we think there's a need to go beyond that,
address that on a case-by-case basis.

Laura?

MS. CAHN: So my question -- go ahead,
Laur a.

MS. LADD: Thank you, Madam Chair,
Ms. Cahn. | just want to highlight, if you | ook at
Appendi x A, in nost of the major risk events that are
outlined, you see act of God as a potential subset of
that risk. And in the one, for exanple, under 5.3, it

then says "Acts of God affecting storage capacity of pore

space.” So it's using a different exanple.
So the way | think about it -- and it's been
sone time since we created this chart. But the way |

t hi nk about that is, what you're really talking about is,
taking the first exanple of mneral rights infringenent,
these various things which could cause mineral rights
infringenment. So an act of God, like a seismc event
which resulted in mineral rights infringement or trespass
or an act of God, going down to the next exanple, that,
probably froma seisnmic event, that caused water quality
contami nation. So just |like, for exanple, the formation

fluid inpact would then cause mneral rights
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i nfringenment.

So it's ultimately exanpl es of things which
coul d occur that cause that nature of category to be
triggered. So it's not -- | think the answer is you
could, frankly, just delete -- you could just have it
read "Act of God," because it's really --

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Or you coul d say "such
as a seismc event."

MS. LADD: "Such as a seismc event.”
That woul d be easy to do.

MS. CAHN: That was ny only question, was
whet her it was i.e., or e.g., because they nean two
different things. And | just thought it should have in
front of it either the "such as," or as an exanple, or
"that is," the "i.e."

MS. LADD: Yeah.

MS. CAHN: And so | think in every case
where there's a parenthetical, it would be nice to just
say, are you wanting to only address the one that's on
there, or do you want to address other exanples that are
like that one? That's all. So it's just a genera
comment to clarify that.

CHAlI RMAN BEDESSEM  And al so, while we're
inthe vicinity of that 1.4 or 2.4 right in the -- the

2.3 --
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MR. HANSON: 3.7.
CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Yeah. But in 2.3 can
we just fix it so it says "contam nants," not

"contam nates,” so we've got the noun in there tw ce, as
opposed to a verb? Thank you

MS. CAHN: That al so happens on line 7.

Shoul d be "contam nants," not "contam nate." And also on
line 7.1, "concentrations of contam nant," not
"contami nate." And also on line 5, "entrained

cont am nant gases,” rather than "contam nate gases."”

And while we're on -- and there's other things
l'i ke font sizes and, for instance, on page A-2, risk
activity table, it's a bigger font than the actual table
itself and bigger font than the Appendix A risk activity
table. So there's a ot of font issues on here with just
font size. And things like CO2, the 2 should always be a
subscript. And that occurs in a nunber of places, so you
could just do a search

And then |I'm confused about the second table,
the table that's at the bottom of page A-2 for the
conpliance activities that will require financia
assurance. |'mnot sure where this has a reference in
the main body or how that relates to -- | nean, it
doesn't have a -- it doesn't have like this is Appendi x

A, Table 2, or -- so it's not clear how that those three

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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items relate to the proposed regul ation

MS. LADD: Madam Chair, Ms. Cahn, |I'm
guessing -- | can't renmenber exactly where that starts
from But, frankly, | would probably recomend, for
pur poses of where we're referencing Appendi x A, that we
del ete that, because it's -- I'mlooking at Bill.

MR, TILLMAN: It was a part of their risk
matri x table, And so | just included it with it.

MS. LADD: | think it's covered. That's
really why | suggested --

MR. TILLMAN: That's fine. W can delete
t hat .

MS. LADD: But either way, we'll go back
and review the genesis of that |anguage and either have
it be consistent with Appendix A that's there in terms of
how it flows or renove it.

MS. CAHN: Okay. | think I felt like it
was redundant. It was really already adequately covered
and didn't need a separate sub table or whatever it is.

I have about two or three dozen exanpl es of
where "that" is -- "which" is used when "that" is neant
that | didn't catch the first time around. So, rather
than go through every |line nunber, perhaps | can just
send that to either G na or Laura or Kevin or Bill or

whoever you tell me to send that to.
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MR. FREDERI CK: Send that to G na, Lorie.
Thank you.

MS. CAHN:  And then the next question |
have is on page 24-16 in the red-line strikeout version
line 762. And this has to do with both [ine 762 and |ine
768. So the question | have is the proposed formation
testing program Is this proposed if results need to be
in the application? And then on line 768, results of the
formation testing program as required in paragraph --
that one above. So is this not in the application? Do
you see what |I'msaying? It's like one's referring --
seems |ike one's the cart before the horse and not -- so
it's confusing.

MR. FREDERI CK: Yeah. | see your point,
Lorie. Let nme take a | ook at that.

MS. CAHN:  And then the next question |
have is on line -- it's on page 24-19, line 890, and the
wording -- the request for coverage under the individua
permt, it just seems -- and | had this problem before.
It just seenms -- | don't follow the sentence, which
reads, conduct any authorized injection activity in a
manner that results in a violation of any permt
condition or representations made in the application,
comm, the request for coverage under the individua

permit. And it just seens |like what's in the clause

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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connect to the rest of the

We agree with that

sent ence.

MR. FREDERI CK:  Yeah.
Lorie. | don't know if that's an artifact or what. But
we'll take a | ook at that.

24-22,

nmonitoring of the annul us space.™

what

what

monitoring is going on and what

MS. CAHN: Thank you.

Ckay. On page

on line 1054 it says, "Pernmt continuous

And |'m just wondering

are you envi si oni ng,

specific paranmeter that would be continuous

nmoni t ori ng?

MR. FREDERI CK: That's essentially annul us

pressure.

MS. CAHN: So could we just add in

"pressure"? Could we say, "Permt continuous nonitoring

of the pressure within the annul us space"?

MR. FREDERI CK: We'|

take a | ook at that

MS. CAHN: The next set of comments that

have are on page 24-24. And |'mjust

how many comment s

qui ckl'y 1 ooking at

have to see if maybe we shoul d have a

ten-m nute break. But | think I'mactually getting very

close to the end of m ne. And t hen

coul d maybe suggest

we have a ten-m nute break and then go on with the rest

of the board coments if that would work. O do people

want

we' ve been going a long tine.

Womi ng Reporting Service
1. 800. 444. 2826

I'mwondering if

I nc.



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Hearing to Di scuss Proposed Revisions

*Non DEQ Parties contact 307-635-4424 to purchase copy*
74

we need a bat hroom break.
CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM | think after Lorie's
comments, | don't think there will be very long after

that. We can probably just wwap it up in about fifteen

m nut es.

MS. CAHN: | couldn't hear Marge.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM |'m saying if you go
t hrough yours, | think we just have a very few short

things after that, and we can probably wap this up in

about fifteen mnutes. And then we'll take a ten-m nute
break and change topics. It's still water quality itens,
but we'll be done with this topic. So please go forward.

MS. CAHN: My next set of comments are on
page 24-24. These are on the injection depth waiver
requirements. | think in 1141 |line nunber, it would be
much sinpler English if we could replace the first "the"
with "each" and get rid of all the pluralizations. So it
woul d read, "A denpnstration that each injection zone is
|laterally continuous, is not a USDW is not hydraulically
connected to USDWs, does not outcrop within the area of
review," et cetera. And the reason is, if we start with

the "is/are" and "zone/zones," you have to carry that al
the way through all the sentences, "do/does.” And | just
think that would just sinmplify the | anguage.

MR. FREDERI CK: Yeah, | think that's

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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reasonabl e, Lorie.
MS. CAHN: And then on line 1147, we're
tal ki ng about the report shall contain the follow ng.
And then the second -- that sentence says, "The confining

unit shall also denobnstrate that they are free of
transm ssive faults.” WeIlIl, confining units don't
denonstrate anything. And since we say the report has to
contain the following, | think it could just be a

separate (iii) or part of that line just say, "a
dermonstration that units are free of transm ssive faults
and fractures.”

CHAI RVAN BEDESSEM  And then also in that,

for some odd reason, that subset (iii) --

MR. TILLMAN: We just caught that.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  -- is not in the right
spot.

MS. CAHN:  We caught that on the | ast one.
And for some reason it -- we tal ked about it last tine.

Didn't get fixed.
On ny -- on page 24-26 on line 1237, the use of
the word "first” in the "pressure in the first USDW
i mmedi ately above and below," | think it's confusing.
And so | would suggest we took out the word "first."
You' ve still got "immediately above and bel ow." So

think it doesn't need to be there, and it would be npore

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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MR. FREDERI CK: Okay, provided we can get

it by EPA. It's their |anguage.
MS. CAHN: Oh, is that EPA | anguage?
MR. FREDERI CK:  Verbati m

MS. CAHN:  We can never -- | won't say

anyt hing. On page 24-36, on line 1729, (A), | would just

delete "the" and delete "of" and just meke it,
"Publishing the notice of the application."

MR. FREDERI CK: Yeah. You'd be
correcting -- no. W can do that w thout offending any
| egi sl at or.

MS. CAHN: This is not directly out of

statute?
MR. FREDERI CK: No. It's paraphrased.
MS. CAHN: On page 24-41 on line 1972, |
think the word "remmin" needs to be "remmins." Because
you have parentheses -- that should be "remin,"

parent heses, "S," parentheses, to follow the

"instrument," parentheses, "S," parentheses.

On page 24-42, in this whole section there's
sone things that are bolded that it's not clear why
they' re bol ded. So, for instance, on page -- or, line

2009, "by using one or multiple qualifying financial

instruments” is bol ded. On line 2037 "sel f-insurance" i

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
1. 800. 444. 2826

S



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Hearing to Di scuss Proposed Revisions

*Non DEQ Parties contact 307-635-4424 to purchase copy*
77

bol ded, at least in ny copy. On the next page, line
2053, "financial test" is bolded. So perhaps those don't
need to be in bold.

MR. FREDERI CK:  Agreed.

MS. CAHN:  And then there's sone weird
capitalizations in here, as well, as Marge was pointing
out. So line 2039 we have "tangi ble net worth" capped,

and in the next line, 2040, it's not capped. And those

caps, | think it should just be | ower case. Sane with
l'ine 2040. The word "net" in "networking capital" is
capped, but "net" is not capped and "tangi ble net worth."

So | think just check through carefully for those kinds
of things.
And that's all | have.

MR. FREDERI CK: Thanks, Ms. Cahn.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  And | have one
question that's going back to our previous conversation.
I'"msorry to go back to this with respect to that special
revenue account. So |'m assum ng that the reason why a
reference to that wasn't included originally is because
all the details have to be worked out and what's going to
be done with that and how that mechani sm would work. So,
if you have kind of a generic thing in there that shows
the intent to have the special revenue account and that

money will be actually collected in that |ong-termcare
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category for that purpose, then once a nmechanismis

wor ked out on how that would be charged, whether it be
charged with throughput or permt or whatever it is, do
you have to come back and change these rules at all, or
can that be sinply done via a guideline for that special
revenue account?

MR. FREDERI CK: If | understand the
question, do we need to clarify how the -- how the funds
actually are provided to the account and nanaged,
essentially?

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Wel |, | guess |'m just

hoping you're going to tell me you can just do a
guideline later and that you don't have to do any
addi ti onal things.

MR. FREDERI CK: That's just exactly what |
was going to tell you, yes.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Thank you

MR. FREDERI CK: It doesn't need to be in
the rule book. We can address it otherw se.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM Cal vin, Klaus, so you
have anything that you want to add or comment?

MR. JONES: | don't. Most of my conments
have al ready been covered.

MR. HANSON: Just to add a note of levity,

at line 1877 on page 39, it strikes nme like comng from
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Pl anned Par ent hood.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Thank you for that
note of levity.

MR. TILLMAN: | believe that's under CYA.

MR. HANSON: It says "accident/unpl anned
events."

MS. LADD: They can be expensive.

MR. HANSON: They can be expensive.

Ri ght. Use precaution.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM I f there are no
addi ti onal board comments, the public coment period,
then, on this batch ends today. Correct?

MR. FREDERI CK: That was the
recommendati on that we wanted to put before the board,
yes, Madam Chair

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  And consi deri ng
there's only one other individual in the room do you
have any comments that you would like to submt on this
particular topic?

MS. TAYLOR: Madam Chair, not on this
i ssue, no.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Thank you very nuch.
Just wanted to make sure we didn't neglect any kind of
public coment, since those comments are to be taken

t hrough this board meeting today. Considering that there
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have been no public comments up to this point, | don't
i mgi ne there is any need to extend this. |Is there --
and from your discussion, you re going to nmove forward
with maki ng additi onal changes to accommdate your -- the
checki ng between the federal rule and the cross-vending
and cone back with that.

So, at this point, the board has just

essentially been educated and provided coments on what
t he changes have been to date, and then we will see this

rule again in the next neeting that hopefully you will
set or at |east get the dates narrowed down at the end of
today's neeting and expect to see that package at that
time. |Is that a correct summary, Admni nistrator
Frederick?

MR. FREDERI CK: Yes, Madam Chair, | think
that's correct. We will nake those changes to this
regul ation that the board suggested we consi der today and
bring this back before the board for a reconmmendati on and
rule before the Council at the next nmeeting. | hope to
al so be prepared to also be able to present to the board
then the crosswal k changes that we'll need to reconcile
in order to nove forward with the primacy. But | think
woul d prefer to handle those as two separate actions
before the board. So | think that's what we'll do.

We'l'l bring back the revisions here, and then we'll also

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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bring in proposed crosswal k changes.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM Do you then have to
public-notice the crosswal k changes?

MR. FREDERI CK: Yes, mm'am

CHAl RMVAN BEDESSEM  And then you'l
have -- you will suggest two separate actions, but then
you'll have a conbi ned version?

MR. FREDERI CK: ldeally --

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM Ideally, if both are
affirmati ve actions that you could present to EQC?

MR. FREDERI CK: Yes, mm'am

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  Any ot her comrents
fromthe board? | just wanted to thank all of you for a
very excellent presentation and clarification.

MS. CAHN: | have a question.

CHAl RVAN BEDESSEM  Go ahead, Lorie.

MS. CAHN: | don't understand why we're
goi ng to have two separate actions. |s there no reason
we can't combine the crosswalk table issues with the
changes to this? So that's not clear to nme why there are
two separate actions and not one.

MR. FREDERICK: | can't anticipate what
the board's reaction is going to be to the crosswal k
changes when they cone in. And | do feel sonmewhat

confortable that the board will be ready to nove the
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financial assurance requirenents at the next neeting. At
least |"moptimstic they'Il be ready to do so. So |
don't want to delay that sinply because there may be
issues with the crosswal k changes. They're a little

bit -- they've got the potential to be a little stickier.
So that's why | suggest or reconmend two separate
actions.

MS. CAHN: But the crosswal k changes are
going to be part of Chapter 24. Correct?

MR. FREDERI CK: Yes, mm'am

MS. CAHN: So it seenms funny to -- so you
woul d want us to send part of Section 24 on to EQC
wi t hout the other part of it and then -- |I'm confused.
And then have the crosswal k table changes then go
separately and change it again to go to EQC?

MR. FREDERI CK: No. My objective here is
to keep things nmoving as expeditiously as possible. And
certainly | believe you support that, as well. |
mnimze ny risk in delay by separating these two
actions. | have no problemtaking the financial
assurance regul ati on before the EQC and then having --
or, com ng back before the EQC again with the crosswal k
changes. That doesn't cause nme any probl em what soever

MS. CAHN: So the issue basically of

primacy is being addressed separately, and that would be

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
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del ayed?
MR. FREDERI CK: Yep, exactly.
MS. CAHN: Okay. | understand. Thank
you.
CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Anyt hing el se fromthe
boar d?

(No response.)

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Again, thank you for
an excel l ent presentation on this particular topic, and
we | ook forward to discussing it again at the next
nmeeti ng.

MR. FREDERI CK: Thank you, Madam Chai r man.
And I'd like to thank especially Ms. Ladd for
participating in the presentation today. | didn't
mention that Ms. Ladd has been involved in assisting us
i n devel opi ng these regulations and will continue to do
so as a consultant to the Departnment, through the
Council, to the governor

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  And so is the next
topic the update on the previous rules and their status?
Why don't you give us that, and we'll take a ten-m nute
break. Because |I'massuning that will just be a couple
of m nutes.

MR. FREDERI CK: The chapters that are

descri bed on the agenda here, Chapters 15 and 25, have
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been before the advisory board and then noved to the
Council. The Council will be hearing these on July 8th
in Cheyenne. And just for your reference again, the
board had requested that we also attach a letter to
Chapter 25 to the Council -- or a neno, | should say --
that kind of explains in detail where the board did not
achi eve unani nous consent on certain sections of the
regul ati ons and our response to that. | think you' ve al
seen a copy of that.

MS. CAHN: Excuse nme. | don't think I've
seen a copy of the letter that you ended up sending to
EQC. So, if I could get a copy of that, |I would
appreciate it.

MS. THOMPSON: Hey, Lorie, it's Gna. W
i ncorporated your edits as requested back in Decenber or
early January. And | hard-copied a -- or, | nmuiled a
hard copy to each of you. You're on the cc'd list for
that letter. So you should be receiving that within the
next couple of days. Because it went out on the sane
date that the notice of intent went out to the Secretary
of State, and the public notice was published in the
Casper Star-Tribune, and our Listserv was sent out, as
well. So the board should be receiving a copy of that
meno. And it's also uploaded to the EQC s docket website

for that particular docket. And |I believe it's Docket
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Nunmber 15-3101. And all of the associated docunents for
that chapter are on the EQC s website.

MS. CAHN:  And that's for Chapter 25?

MS. THOWPSON: 15 and 25. That is
correct.

MR. FREDERICK: In the nmail

MS. CAHN: And the date of that EQC
hearing is what?

MR. FREDERI CK: July 8th in Cheyenne.
That's al so noticed on the EQC website.

Okay. Madam Chair, real quickly, Chapters 8,
9, 13, 16, these, again, are part of the rule reduction
initiative of the governor to streamine rules and
regul ations. Essentially, these are U C rules and
regul ati ons, one for Class V wells, one for Class VI
wells. Did1l say VI? | and V. And we're conbining them
into one chapter, Chapter 27. So that's going to be
before the EQC on the 8th al so.

MS. THOWPSON: We wanted to note that our
original proposal included Chapter 9. But after further
consi deration, we've withdrawn our request to revise
Chapter 9 with the rest of those revisions. So the
notice to the Environnmental Quality Council and the
notice of intent excludes Chapter 9. It will remain as

it is.
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CHAl RMVAN BEDESSEM  And why was t hat
deci ded?

MR. FREDERI CK: |'m glad you asked. You
know, in retrospect, it occurred to me that 9, as well as
8, were essentially the primary fundanental regul ations
in place at the time that the State applied for prinmacy
for the U C program Over the years, EPA has struggl ed
with meeting the requirement that they stay abreast while
the regul atory changes that were nade to the state's
primacy progranms. So, rather than nuddy the waters
further, it's ny recommendati on and nmy decision, | should
say, that we're going to leave 9 as it is.

So the discussion at sone future tinme, which
I'"msure will occur after |I'm gone, EPA will be knocking
on the door, saying, whatever happened to Chapter 9, and
why did you repeal it, and shouldn't you have perhaps
consulted with us nore closely on that before you deci ded
to do that? Because it's a fundamental docunent.

And al so upon cl oser inspection, there' s sone
key regul atory | anguage in Chapter 9. Not a lot. But
there is sone what | think is critical |anguage to
mai ntain in place as a regulation that the Department can
utilize primarily with respect to spills and rel eases.
It's my opinion that there's regulatory |anguage in there

that allows us to essentially proceed wi th enforcenent
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actions for spills and rel eases. And these are
oftentimes intentional. Wthout the need to collect the
| evel of docunentation and evidence that we normally are
able to collect for spills and rel eases that are
uni ntentional and are -- are those where operators are
conplying with notifying us of a spill and release and
providing us information and so forth that we can then
use to assess environmental damage. And the intentional
spills and rel eases, we oftentinmes get involved after the
fact or during the act itself, oftentimes wthout
necessary equi pment we need to take a sanple, whatever is
bei ng | eaked out of a truck or we notice on the ground.

The | anguage in Chapter 9 essentially says that
a release to the vadose zone that has the potential to
i npact groundwater requires a permt. |It's much nore
easier for us to docunment and take action on -- | should
say it's easier for the Departnment to document that there
has been a release to the vadose zone that may i nmpact
groundwat er, as opposed to the alternative, that, indeed,
the release is significant enough that an inpact wll
occur. So | think there's sone subtle differences there
that are worth preserving and would like to relinquish
those by review ng Chapter 9.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  Thank you much for

t hat explanation. And then is -- this is material that's
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movi ng forward, and your departnent is also working on
changes to Chapter 12, | assune?

MR. TILLMAN: Yes.

CHAl RVAN BEDESSEM  Yes?

MR. TILLMAN: Yes.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  That may be down the
pi ke?

MR. TILLMAN: Madam Chair, yes. The
wat er, wastewater section is currently revising Chapter
12. I'min the mddle of that, as well. And that's down
the road. | can't say exactly when that will be done or
ready to present to the board. Probably nore |like early
next year. First quarter is nmy guess, sonmewhere in that
nei ghbor hood.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  Thank you. Are we
ready for break now? Okay. And then we'll discuss the
el ectronics subm ssions after break

(Hearing proceedi ngs recessed
11:33 a.m to 11:50 a.m)

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM |'m calling to order
again the Water and Waste Advisory Board neeting. W
are -- on the agenda, we're up to Director Parfitt's
response regarding the electronic submttal of comments.
And Admi nistrator Fred -- Frederick -- |I'mhaving trouble

with your last name today -- will speak regarding that
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i ssue.

MR. FREDERI CK: Thank you, Madam Chai r man.
I believe you all have had an opportunity to see Director
Parfitt's response to the board's request for DEQto
consider taking electronic public comments on actions
that the Departnent brings before the public. And as a
rem nder, that includes not only devel opnent al
pronul gati on of rules and regul ations that the Departnment
is interested in devel oping, but it also includes severa
types of different permits the Department issues that
require public notification and an opportunity to
comment. As related to today's conversation, those do
include the mapjority of U C permits for Class | wells,
for Class V wells and for carbon sequestration Class Vi
wells, not to mention permts that are al so i ssued by
other divisions in DEQ in particular, Air Quality
Di vi si on.

I think Director Parfitt pointed out in his
letter to the board nmenmbers that DEQ i ssues approxi mately
140 different permts, individual permts for public
notice and public comment each nmonth on the average, so
t hat perhaps recogni zi ng again what the director noted in
his letter, that DEQ probably is the singular agency with
the heaviest lift in terms of providing opportunity for

public conment on actions that the Departnent takes.

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
1. 800. 444. 2826



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Hearing to Di scuss Proposed Revisions

*Non DEQ Parties contact 307-635-4424 to purchase copy*

90

So it's sonething that obviously has a
potential to affect not only the workload at the
Departnment, and |'m tal king specifically about taking
el ectronic comments, but also may lead to the need for
addi ti onal resources to support that effort. We sinply
don't know yet until we begin to get into this uncharted
waters a little bit.

And | think fundamentally the director also
poi nted out that there's an inportant distinction between
taki ng comments by e-mail, as opposed to providing the
opportunity for the public to provide coments through an
electronic format. And | think he articul ated sone of
the issues with taking e-mail comments and why that's not
the direction that we would recommend goi ng down.

So, after our last neeting before the board, we
certainly carried back the board's interest and concerns
that we probably were not noving quickly enough in
| ooki ng at opportunities for electronic comment delivery,
despite the fact that it was sonmething that was on our
radar screen, and we had | ooked at it. W had been
|l ooking at it. But I think the pronpt that we received
fromthe board was a tinmely one, and |I think we're
respondi ng accordi ngly.

So, that said and wi thout further delay, we

have devel oped an overvi ew presentation that G na
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Thonpson and Bill have devel oped regardi ng essentially
the work that we've done in the interimto explore this
i ssue and provide the board with an update on where we're
at and our thoughts on how we're going to proceed.

Finally, | think it's our intent to try and
initiate a test of this electronic comment delivery
mechani sm before the -- before the board at its next
advi sory board neeting relating to a rul e-maki ng package
that | think Solid and Hazardous Waste is going to be
presenting before the board. This will give us an
opportunity to at |east see how well the system works and
al so provide an opportunity to see if there's any issues
and problens that arise. | think the director wants to
make sure that we get this thing right and focus
primarily on using it for rule devel opment initially, and
that will help better informthe decision as to how we
woul d proceed with electronic delivery of coments on
permts and things like that, other actions before the
Depart nment.

So, with that, 1'Il et Gna and Bill kind of
expl ain where we're at.

MS. THOWMPSON: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Bill and | have been researching the use of electronic
means for conmenting with other state agencies. And the

ot her agencies within the state have devel oped forns
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using the Google platform Google Forms. One such agency
in particular is the Ofice of the Ganme and Fi sh, and
they take their public comments concerning gui dance and
rul e- maki ng proposals through their websites, where an
interested citizen, an interested party, can visit the
Game and Fish website, fill in the required information
such as their name, and nmanually type in a comment, hit a
submit button, and the Game and Fish receives the coment
el ectronically.

We devel oped a test of a simlar formusing
their -- using their formas a tenplate, and we
distributed it to our rule-making team back at DEQ  The
formincluded a required field such as first and | ast
name, what is your address, and we nmade the manua
comment box a required field, as well. These required
fields are hel pful because the conmenter can't
accidentally submt a blank comrent if these are marked
"required.” They have to fill it out entirely and then
hit "submit" or it doesn't really let them go any
further. So it prevents a lot of weird confusion on
their part and ours.

So we conducted a test with our rul e-nmaking
team and had them send us feedback. And we noticed a
nunber of limtations that DEQ would be interested in

resolving that other agencies nm ght not have the sane

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
1. 800. 444. 2826



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Hearing to Di scuss Proposed Revisions

*Non DEQ Parties contact 307-635-4424 to purchase copy*

93

| evel of need.

MR. TILLMAN: One of the reasons why |
guess the in-depth and across-the-board |look at it is
Director Parfitt wanted to make sure we had basically a
singl e mechani smthat can be used agency-wi de. And there
are certain groups, nanely Air Quality and also the
wat er shed group, their comments to proposed rul e-making
and policies and things |ike that get fairly detail ed,
and the coments involve charts and graphs and ot her
tables and things like that. So there's sonme limtations
to the basic forms and things that we noticed that the
Game and Fish had used that we would need to incorporate
agai n across our entire agency. So now we're | ooking at
a neans to address those needs.

And there's been two or three different
options, sone that cost noney, sone that didn't.
Obviously we're | ooking for the |east cost because we
don't necessarily have the funding, at |east presently,
to put towards the additional resources. So, again,
that's something that is necessary for other agencies,
not necessarily for our agency. Again, our comments tend
to be typically just text and not involve --
(Phone ringing.)
MR. TILLMAN: As | was saying, our

conmments tend to generally involve text, as opposed to
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additional attachnents. So, to nmake it more conplete and
robust, we're still doing sonme further research to make
sure that, can we have sonething that can be used across
the agency with slight variations, but the basic tenplate
woul d be the same? So, again, we're doing a little bit
further research on that.

Madam Chair ?

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM It seens |ike you
woul d want to have an avenue where you can upl oad
docunents. Because if you've got a nmunicipality, for
exampl e, where they want to have an official submtta
where you know you have the appropriate representative
and you have whatever attachnents, because they've been
approved, so they can upload the docunent, and it seens
like that is something that every one of your divisions
woul d need, regardl ess of whether there's -- it's a PDF
and whether it has graphs or tables or whatever

MR. TILLMAN: And like |I said, our
experience, or at |east ny experience, | haven't seen
that from Water Quality. But again, fromthe watershed
group, | know Air Quality, that is definitely a necessity
that they need to have as a part of the electronic
subm ttal or responses. So, again, we're trying to nmake
sure that what we provide to Director Parfitt is

sonet hing that's agency-w de useful and that, again,
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costs the | east anount of noney and | east anount of
resources.

MS. THOMPSON: So our current status on
this particular project is that we're working out details
with ETS to determine if we can easily address the upl oad
concern or if we are going to need to draft a work order
and fund said work order. And we'll be continuing
consultation with themand will probably have additional
informati on for you when you' re ready to launch this.

One of the -- one of the concerns wth taking
e-mai|l comrents was the additional workload that it would
potentially nean for us. And there were security
concerns, as well, things such as our robust spamfilter
at the State preventing potential coments from getting
t hrough. And then on our side of it, we were very
concerned that we would encounter a |ot of spam that it
woul dn't be neaningful real coments but that it would be
sone sort of robotic spam | aunchi ng.

And the direction that we seemto be headed is
definitely a tie-in with Google Forns. The State
currently operates on the Google platform And we have
fornms easily available to us. So it doesn't require --
like the basic idea is that if we use that, we don't have
to purchase additional software or |icensing.

And there are a nunber of workflow perks to
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usi ng Google Forns, such as, when a commenter enters a
conment or does -- you know, potentially down the road
doesn't upload, Google translates all of that information
into an Excel spreadsheet, a master spreadsheet, which
woul d elimnate a | ot of data entry on the part of DEQ
staff, and it would also allow us to do sonme additiona
anal ysis. Especially for comment periods where we
received a |lot of comnments, it would allowa little bit
better analysis than working in a traditional paper/pen
way all ows.

So we're excited to pursue that. And again, we
are continuing our conpetition with ETS. Because once we
get these public coment issues resolved, we would |ike
to potentially translate this formidea to other business
t hat DEQ conducts that the function is the sane but it
m ght apply to a different program So we're just --
we're excited that this is heading in the direction that
it is. And it looks like it will be ready fairly soon
and fairly snmoothly.

MR. FREDERI CK: | think optically what
this would ultimately look like is the public would have
an opportunity to go directly to our website. They would
then see a link that would allow themto go directly to
the cooment form We envision that, in all |ikelihood,

it would be nultiple opportunities to comrent on
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different rule-making activities or pernmts at the sane
time. So sonmehow we're going to have to distinguish and
make sure that the comrent on a particular rule or permt
is directed to the appropriate formand so forth.

I think we also envision that the public
notices that we post on our website and that we send out
electronically to our mailing list would ideally contain
a link that you could essentially click on, and then that
woul d direct you right to either the website or the form
or sonmething like that. So we want to try and naeke this
as efficient as possible. W' re kind of excited about
it. W're alittle nervous about it, | guess, in terns
of the change to the way we do business.

The spreadsheet opportunity that G na was
referring to provides search capabilities. | see some
benefit in that in terms of trying to identify key issues
or comments that are presented in the spreadsheet and for
us to be able to nore easily tease those out. | think
it's also going to make it easier, perhaps, for us to
devel op a response to comments, because historically the
approach had been that we have to enter all that response
into a Word docunent or whatever, and now we should be
able to cut and paste a lot of that. So | think there's
sone positives for us to gain fromthis, as well.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM Before the board
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comments on anything, is there -- are there any conments
fromthe public regarding this electronic comrent issue?
Cone forward to the m crophone.

MS. TAYLOR: Madam Chair, do you mind if |
approach the table?

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Yeah, that's fine
And announce your nanme and who you represent, please.

MS. TAYLOR: So ny nane is Megan Tayl or,
and | represent the Powder River Basin Resource Council
And to begin, | just want to thank the Water and Waste
Advi sory Board and the DEQ for taking on this inmportant
i ssue. We understand that there are hurdles that need to
be overconme, but | can let the board know that the Powder
Ri ver Basin Resource Council has filed a rul e-making
petition with the Environnmental Quality Council to kind
of spur the agency to look into electronic comments. W
really want this conversation to happen in a public
forum We want the public to be fully engaged with this
process, especially as the conversation turns towards
el ectronic kind of options available to the DEQ W al so
want other divisions of the agency to be involved in this
conversation under the public eye.

So we noticed that the DEQ is favoring a
Web-based form And we just want to raise concerns we

found with Web-based forms. Many Wom ng residents live
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in rural areas that have slow Internet speeds. And also,
sone of these Web-based forms require software to be
downl oaded in order for that formto function properly.
So this can be a barrier to public participation. And I
just want to make sure that these public access concerns
are addressed if the DEQ does decide to go with the

Web- based form

Al so, we're happy to hear that you' ve actually
consi dered the upl oadi ng of docunents. That's very
i nportant to our organization and to our nenbers.
Sonetinmes their rule-makings are projects that require us
to submt many exhibits. And we just want to make sure
that the form has adequate space for us to submt those
upl oaded docunents.

Al so, we ask the agency to have the form where
you can actually copy and paste into the text on the
form rather than typing into the formdirectly, just
because it can be easier to format and spell-check and
draft your comment in a word-processing program and then
copy it over, rather than have to e-mail them separately
and worry about things going wrong.

And we just had one question. W noticed in
the letter DEQ sent to the Water and Waste Advi sory Board
that it was found to be cost-prohibitive for the agency

to institute e-mai|l coments because you have to set up a
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separate e-mail account for each project deserving of
public coment. And we just wanted to know if the agency
consi dered just having a separate e-mail account for each
division, and if that was consi dered, why that option was
di scarded. That m ght hel p save on cost.

Thank you so much for allowing us to coment.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Thank you very nuch.

Anyone el se?

(No response.)

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  Okay. Adm ni strator
Frederick, did you want to say anything with regard to
those itenms other than --

MR. FREDERI CK: The question that was
asked on separate e-mmil accounts, do we have anything to
respond to that?

Madam Chair, if you wish further clarification
on the concern that the previous speaker nentioned with
respect to the need for nore than one e-mail account for
each division, that's sonething I would have to go back
and investigate a little bit further. | can't provide a
response to that right now.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM | just wanted to
mention that Megan listed a nunber of things that she
t hought were inportant to her constituents as far as

options within the form | belong to a number of groups
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where | need to submt -- fill out forms and submt the
forms. And one problem | always run into is the
inability to print the formbefore I send it. And then
hit the "send"” button. And if | don't get an e-nmail
response saying it's been received or whatever, | don't
really know that they got it and what they got, and so to
give the commenter the option to at |east print the form
so they know what they submitted on what date and that it
had been received woul d be appreci at ed.

MR. TILLMAN: Madam Chair, one of the
things with Google Forms that is -- one of the things
that's good to have about that is that when someone from
the public submits a comment, they will get a, "Thank you

for your coment,"” so they know that it has been
submtted. And Google Fornms also has a way to track any
subm ssion. Whether it was submitted with a comrent or
not, we have a way of tracking that. So none of them get
lost. So there is a way for the public to know that
their comment was received. And we can denonstrate and
we can show a listing of all the comments that have been
received. So, again, if there's any discrepancy fromthe
public saying, "Well, | sent it, and you guys didn't get
it or didn't do anything," we can very easily docunent

that with the Googl e Forns.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  But also the ability
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to print, as well, so that they know what it is that they
sent.

MS. THOMPSON: Right. And | believe that
since we are using -- our direction is to go towards
usi ng Google Forns as a browser-based form that would
allow you to print it within your browser. So you would
be able to print the page that you're | ooking at using
your browser menu. So that would be -- that would allow
you to do that.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM | just know that
soneti nes when there's a box and you scroll it in the
box, if you're printing, you end up with a print screen.
You end up with a quarter of the box. You don't actually
know what it is that you submtted. So that's just a
concern. Those are just mnor details. | amjust
pl eased that, rather than putting off any kind of
el ectronic subm ssion for years, that there is an effort
bei ng made toward getting this done. And we always will
need to be able to receive paper conmments because there
are still lots of people who aren't -- you know, have
slow I nternet speed who are not on conputers who have --
shoul d have the ability to provide comrents just as
everyone does that has a computer. So there should
al ways be all those avenues.

Any comments from board members? Kl aus,
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Calvin, Lorie?
Lorie, do you have any coments?

MR. HANSON: No. She's shaking her head.
I can see her.

CHAl RMAN BEDESSEM  Ckay. You can see
her? Okay. |It's hard to see body | anguage on that.

Thank you very much. Very pleased to have this
response as sonething that we can nove forward. And
M. Applegate let us know via e-mail that he was okay
with this process. And so we |ook forward to hearing
updates in the future on how that's going and seeing the
first test with, I don't know, perhaps Chapter 2
revisions. | don't know. Depends on what Solid and
Hazar dous Waste --

MR. TILLMAN: Yeah. Madam Chair, | think
they have a rule coming up shortly that we have an
opportunity to test with that.

CHAI RMAN BEDESSEM  Sounds good. Thank
you very much.

(Hearing proceedi ngs concl uded

12:16 p.m, My 7, 2015.)
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Dated this 26th day of My, 2015.

RANDY A. HATLES
Regi stered Merit Reporter

Woni ng Reporting Service, Inc.
1. 800. 444. 2826



